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Group Salient Features

• The Group has a turnover of Rs. 4,000 crore - Export constitutes 46% (Rs. 1,840 

crore).

• One of the largest textile houses in the country with a turnover of over Rs. 2,450 crore 

- Export constitutes 42% (Rs. 1,025 crore).

• One of leading manufacturer and exporter of Graphite Electrodes in the country with 

turnover of Rs. 1,084 crore - Export constitutes 74% (Rs. 807 crore).

• Largest producer and exporter of Synthetic Blended Yarn and largest range in Greige, 

Dyed and Mélange Yarn with total spindleage capacity of nearly 5 Lacs.

• Manufacturer of Wool Blended and Premium Light Weight Fabrics, Worsted Fabric, 

Silk Synthetic fashion Fabric and Denim Fabric.

• India's one of the largest vertically integrated Knitwear Company.

• Manufacturer of Flame Retardants, Air – texturized Yarn and Automotive Furnishing 

Fabric.

• World's largest single site plant of Graphite Electrodes with a production capacity of 

66,000 TPA.

• The Group has 120 MW Thermal Power Plants, approx. 300 MW Hydro Power Plants & 

60 MW HFO based Captive Power Plants.

• The Group generated 1,300 Million power units in the year 2009-10.

• A consulting Company providing engineering consultancy services  for  Hydro Power 

Projects.
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RSWM Limited

1. Kharigram Fibre Dyeing, Spinning Dyed & Grey Yarn

2. Mayur Nagar, Banswara Spinning PV Blended, Cotton & Open End Grey Yarn

3. Mandpam Melange, Cotton Dyed Yarn & Yarn Dyeing

4. Rishabhdev Spinning PV Blended Grey Yarn

5. Ringas Fibre Dyeing & Spinning Dyed Yarn

6. LNJ Nagar, Mordi Weaving & PV Fabric Processing & Finishing

7. LNJ Nagar, Mordi Cotton Ring & Open End Spinning, Denim Fabric 
Weaving & Rope Dyeing, Processing & Finishing

8. LNJ Nagar, Mordi Thermal Power

Cheslind Textiles Ltd.

9. Bagalur Spinning Cotton, Compact, Gassed & Mercerized Yarn 
& Knitting

10. Pondicherry Spinning Cotton, Compact, Gassed & Mercerized Yarn 
& Knitting

Maral Overseas Ltd.

11. Maral Sarovar Cotton Spinning, Knitting, Dyeing & Finishing, Knitted 
Garments

12. Maral Sarovar Captive Thermal Power

13. Noida Knitted Garments

14. Noida Knitted Garments

BSL Ltd.

15. Bhilwara PV & Worsted Spinning, PV & Worsted Weaving & Silk 
Fabric

16. Jaisalmer Wind Power Generation

BMD Pvt. Ltd.

17. LNJ Nagar, Mordi Automotive Furnishing Fabric, Flame Retardant 
Fabric, Furnishing Fabric

Bhilwara Technical Textiles Ltd.

18. LNJ Nagar, Mordi Technical Textiles

HEG Ltd.

19. Mandideep Graphite Electrodes

20. Mandideep Captive Thermal Power

21. Tawa Captive Hydro Electric Power

Bhilwara Energy Ltd.

22. Pathankot UBDC Stage III Hydro Electric Power Generation

Malana Power Company Ltd.

23. Malana (Kullu) Hydro Electric Power Generation

AD Hydro Power Ltd.

24. Allain-Duhangan Hydro Electric Power Generation
(Manali)

NJC Hydro Power Ltd.

25. Tawang Nyam Jang Chhu Hydro Electric Power Generation

Indo Canadian Consultancy Services Ltd.

26. Noida Power Engineering Services

Bhilwara Scribe Pvt. Ltd.

27. Bhopal Medical Transcription Services

28. Bengaluru Medical Transcription Services

Bhilwara Infotech Ltd.

29. Bengaluru IT Services

Corporate Office

30. Noida (NCR-Delhi)

Regional / Marketing

31. Mumbai 35. Ludhiana

32. Kolkata 36. Amritsar

33. Bengaluru 37. Bhilwara

34. New Delhi
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Dear Stakeholders,

2009-10 has been an year of rebound for the global economy from the 

widespread crisis amidst ongoing policy support and improving financial 

market conditions. 

India's growth-inflation dynamics are in contrast to the overall global 

scenario. The economy is recovering rapidly from the growth slowdown. 

The growth is driven by robust performance of the manufacturing sector on 

the back of government and consumer spending. IMF and other economic 

agencies have been bullish on Indian economy. IMF has revised the growth 

forecast of the Indian economy to 9.5% for 2010 from 8.8% projected 

earlier, based on robust corporate profits and favourable financing 

conditions, which are likely to fuel investments. 

Sustenance of such high levels of economic growth and development is 

dependent on adequate, cost-effective and quality infrastructure. 

Accordingly the ongoing economic reforms in India have attached a high 

priority to the better utilization of existing infrastructure and developments 

in new infrastructures so that existing bottlenecks do not inhibit the overall 

economic growth and export dynamism. 

Message from the Chairman

Power Sector is a key constituent of infrastructure and closely linked to output. To deliver sustained growth rate of 8% 

through 2031-32 and to meet the lifeline energy needs of all citizens ('POWER for All by 2012' : target of 1000 KwHr 

(Units) of per capita consumption of electricity), the power sector needs to grow at 1.8 - 2 times the GDP rate of growth. At 

>8% GDP growth rate, the required installed power generation capacity is likely to be around 306,000MW in 2016-17 

and 425,000MW in 2021-22 against installed capacity of 159,398MW (as of 31st March 2010), which translates into 

a YOY capacity addition of 30,000 MW. As compared to that, 22,000 MW has been added during last five years under 

APDRP (Accelerated Power Development & Reforms Program). Achieving these goals would require investments of US $ 

250 Billion into the power sector; increasing the role of Hydel & Renewable Energy in the Energy Mix and; urgent need to 

develop the alternatives : both in the Fuel & Technology terms.

During the financial year the turnover of the MPCL stood at Rs. 1,619.439 Millions. The Profit after Tax is Rs. 989.211 

Millions and cash profits from business is Rs. 1,189.989 Millions. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to express our sincere gratitude to the Government of India, Government 

of Himachal Pradesh, Himachal Pradesh State Electricity Board, PTC India, all Government departments and agencies, 

investors, lenders, and bankers for the unending support. I would also take this opportunity to thank our employees and 

business associates, who have been the pillar of strength for the Company.

With  best  wishes,

Ravi Jhunjhunwala

Chairman
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TO THE MEMBERS

MALANA POWER COMPANY LIMITED

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their Thirteenth Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company and 

audited statement of accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2010 together with the Auditors’ Report.

Director's Report

0504

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (In Million)

TOTAL TURNOVER 1619.439 1853.616

Less : Discount on prompt payments/ Unscheduled interchanged charges 52.714 58.178

Net Sales 1566.725 1795.438

Other Income 446.551 133.899

Total Income 2013.275 1929.337

PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST, DEPRECIATION AND TAX 1792.473 1746.930

Interest 426.871 105.222

PROFIT BEFORE DEPRECIATION AND TAX 1365.602 1641.708

Depreciation 199.646 201.292

Profit before tax and prior period income 1165.956 1440.416

Prior Period Income (represents Surrender Value of Keyman Insurance Policy) 28.528 –

Profit before Tax 1194.484 –

Provision for Tax

– Current Tax 204.141 163.199

– MAT credit reverse – –

– Tax for earlier years – –

– Deferred Tax 1.133 1.299

– FBT/WT Tax – 1.150

NET PROFIT AFTER DEPRECIATION AND TAX (PADIT) 989.211 1274.768

Balance brought forward from previous year 2924.050 1643.727

AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 3913.260 2918.495

APPROPRIATION 5.556 5.555

Transfer to debenture redemption reserve adj. – –

for Employee Benefits provision (net of tax Rs. 141000)

Total 5.556 5.555

Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 3918.816 2924.050

Basic and diluted Earning Per Share (EPS), (In Rs.) 6.71 8.98

Your Company’s turnover for this financial year stood at Rs. 1,619.439 Millions. The Profit after Tax is Rs 989.211 Millions and 

cash profits from business is Rs. 1,189.989 Millions. The Company has sold 1,81,223 units of VER’s during the year, which has 

earned Rs. 75.982 Millions. 

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended

31.03.2010  31.03.2009

DIVIDEND

POWER BUSINESS

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

POWER SALES

THE FUTURE OUTLOOK-INDIAN POWER SECTOR 

Keeping in view the financial commitment of the Company, your directors do not propose any dividend for the financial year under 

review.

During the period under review the plant availability touched 99.94% and as per the available hydrology data the generation stood at 

305.790 Million Units. The operation data for the year is as given below:

(In Million Units)

1. Total Generation 339.825 360.050 305.790

2. Less: Auxiliary Transmission Loss 3.732 4.184 3.167

3. Less: Royalty/Wheeling to Govt. HPSEB 61.841 65.479 55.682

4. Less: Impact of Unschedule Interchange Energy 0.425 1.262 2.765

 5. Total Units sold 273.827 289.125 244.176

During the year the company recorded a sale of 244.176 Million. The Company has been selling its generated power to PTC India Ltd. 

on short term contract basis. The present contract with PTC is expiring on 30th June 2010. Your Directors are pleased to inform you that 

the Company has already entered into power sale contract with PTC India Ltd. for another period of three months i.e. from July, 2010 to 

September, 2010 for sale of power to Punjab. 

Energy is an essential part of the overall development of the country. 

S. No Particulars 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10
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India is one of the fastest growing economies of the world and has been recording high GDP growth over the last few years. Economists 

predict that the Indian economy will continue to maintain the same tempo in future also, which will lead to further increase in demand for 

electricity due to the fact that the growth in GDP and Power consumption are positively correlated, i.e., both move in the same direction.

India’s power generation capacity increased to 1,59,398 MW as on 31st March 2010 as compared to 1,47,965 MW as on 

31st March 2009, an increase of 7.72%. The total energy available increased from 6,89,021 MUs ( 2008-09) to 7,46,493 MUs 

(2009-10), an increase of 8.34%. 

As per Planning Commission estimates, total electricity requirement in the country at eight per cent GDP growth is projected to cross 

1,000 BU by 2011-12 and further rise to 2,118 BU by 2021-22. The Planning Commission has estimated that for an energy 

requirement of 1,097 BU in 2011-12 (at eight per cent GDP growth), installed capacity has to be 2,20,000 MW. At the same GDP 

growth rate, total installed capacity is required to be 306,000 MW and 425,000 MW in 2016-17 and 2021-22 respectively. Over 

the last decade, India’s electricity generation has surged from 480.7 BU in 1999-00 to 771.17 BU in 2009-10. However, there still 

exists a wide gap between demand for power and actual supply and this translates into huge opportunity for the power sector 

companies to capitalize on.

Increase in power capacity and economic growth over the years have led to rise in per capita consumption of electricity in India from 

566.7 KWh in 2002-03 to 704.2 KWh in 2007-08, growing at a CAGR of 3.69 per cent. However, India’s consumption is still one of 

the lowest in the world with the global average being around 2,701 KWh. 

With the Indian Economy growing at more than 7 to 8 percent annually, the demand for power has been outstripping supply. India 

continues to experience acute shortages in energy supply (11.7%) and peak load capacity (13.3%). Both energy demand and peak 

demand are expected to grow at between 7-8% up to 2017 and at 6-7% thereafter. 

In order to cater to its growing requirement of electricity, India has to reduce its dependency on fossil fuels by looking at other 

alternatives of energy which are both cost effective and cleaner in nature. Hydro Power, besides supplementing demand for electricity, 

is also one of the better available choices for meeting peak demand. As of March 2009 the total installed capacity of Hydro Power in 

India was about 37,000 MW. However, almost 70% of the exploitable hydro power capacity of 1,48,701 MW still remains to be 

developed. As per Hydro Power Policy 2008, the Government of India plans to tap the unexploited capacity by end of 14th Five year 

plan ( 2022-23 to 2026-27), which means that Hydro Power will see a surge in investment during the next 15 years.

Off late, the Government of India has taken many initiatives starting 

from the enactment of Electricity Act 2003, introduction of Open 

Access , setting up of Regulatory Commissions at the Centre and 

States, unbundling of state electricity boards, modification of mega 

power policy, formulation of Competitive Bidding Tariff, facilitation of 

trading of surplus/merchant capacity and setting up of Power 

Exchanges. All these initiatives have had positive results and attracted 

more investment in the power sector.

The short term power market has been gradually consolidating its 

position in the Indian power sector. The volume of traded power grew 

by 37 per cent during 2009-10 as compared to the previous year. 

According to Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) 

estimates, the power exchanges and trading licensees transacted 

short term power worth Rs.192.17 billion in 2009.

A notable recent development has been the emergence of industrial 

consumers for power procurement through exchanges. During 2009, 

over 20 industries procured a total of 154.4 million units (MUs) 

through the power exchange (IEX). 

For merchant plants, the tariffs are governed by supply and demand in 

the market. The current demand-supply gap, which is expected to 

continue for at least next 10 years , provides not only investment 

opportunities in the power sector but will also boost the sale of power 

in the spot market/ on short term contract basis. 

The real asset of our company is human resource and thrust for better 

utilization of Human resource and improvement in work practice 

continued during the year. Training and development at all levels of 

employees was given due priority by the company to increase 

effectiveness. Special emphasis was given to organization building 

and shaping right attitudes, team building and work culture, besides 

preparing employees to understand the trends in fast changing 

technology and switching over to latest technology for achieving 

higher results. During the year from time to time employees of the 

company were deputed to various training programmes to further 

develop their skill in various areas of operations of the company.    

The company is also committed to provide a zero injury workplace to 

its employees and workers all across its units. Employees are 

adequately covered under various insurance policies against risk of 

health and life disasters. The company continues to empower its 

employees to achieve business successes. 

The Company has proper and adequate systems of internal control to 

ensure protection of assets, proper financial and operating functions 

and compliance with the policies, procedures, applicable Acts and 

Rules. The company’s internal controls are supplemented by 

internal/management audits covering all financial and operating 

functions. The Audit committee at their meetings regularly review the 

financial, operating, internal audit and compliance reports to improve 

performance. 

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS
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INTERNAL AUDIT

ENVIRONMENT RESPONSIBILITY 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Internal Audit at MPCL is an independent, objective and assurance function conscientious for evaluating and improving the 

effectiveness of risk management, Control, and governance processes. The function prepares annual audit plans based on risk 

management and conducts extensive reviews covering financial, operational and compliance controls and risk mitigation. 

Internal audit plans cover matters identified in risk management assessments as well as issues highlighted by the Board, the audit 

committee and senior management. Quarterly Internal audit reports are submitted along with the management’s response to the Audit 

Committee. The Audit Committee monitors performance of Internal Audit on a periodic basis through review of the internal audit plans, 

audit findings & swiftness of issue resolution through follow ups. 

The company has planted 650 nos. of deodar saplings along the river bank and also planted 220 nos. of fruit trees viz Apple 150, Kiwi 

30, Japani Fruit 25, Cherry 10, Walnut–5 at Doonkhra Housing Complex and Malana Township area. The Company has also 

distributed 200 saplings of fruit trees among 20 villagers of village–Chowki. The disposal of hazardous waste is being done as per 

approved standard/Norms of Pollution Control Board. 

The Company has also contributed towards preparation and fixation of environmental awareness boards from Nehru Kund to Rohtang 

Pass as per the request of Pollution Control Board – Badah, Kullu. 

The Company recognizes that its operations impact a wide community of stakeholders, including investors, employees, customers, 

business associates and local communities and that appropriate attention to the fulfillment of its corporate responsibilities can enhance 

overall performance. In structuring its approach to the various aspects of Corporate Social Responsibility, the Company takes account 

of guidelines and statements issued by stakeholder representatives and other regulatory bodies. The Company continues to support 

local initiatives to improve infrastructure to support other corporate social responsibility initiatives.

We are committed to providing a working environment, which is both safe and fit for the intended purpose and ensures that health and 

safety issues are a priority for all business operation

As a constructive partner in the communities in which it operates, 

company has been taking concrete action to realize its social 

responsibility and has spent on the infrastructure development 

including construction, widening of roads and strengthening and 

construction of bridges. 

Your Company assessed and prioritized the needs of the local 

community and took initiatives like renovation of temples, organizing 

of local fair/festival, vocational training programme in tailoring, 

repair of foot Bridge on river parvati connecting Katgla Village. To 

make our efforts sustainable, we had been providing teachers to the 

local Govt. school and are also providing free medicines.

Particulars required by the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the 

Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 are given in the prescribed 

format as Annexure-I to the Directors’ Report. 

Information in accordance with the provisions of Section 217(2A) of 

the Companies Act, 1956 (the Act), read with the Companies 

(Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975, as amended, regarding 

employees is given in Annexure-II to the Directors’ Report. 

As required under Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies (Amendment) 

Act, 2000, the Directors’ of your Company states hereunder:-

i) That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 

Accounting Standards had been followed along with proper 

explanation relating to material departures;

ii) that the accounting policies have been selected and applied 

consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 

state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and 

of the profit or loss of the Company for the financial year 

2009-2010.

iii) that the proper and sufficient care has been taken for the 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 

the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 

irregularities; and

iv) That the annual accounts have been prepared on going concern 

basis.

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and of 

the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Bidyut Shome and 

Ms. Rohini Roshanara Sood, Directors of the Company, are liable to 

retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and 

being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. The Board 

recommends their re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting. The aforesaid reappointment/appointments are subject to 

the approval of the members and the necessary resolutions have been 

incorporated in the notice of the Annual General Meeting.

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

DIRECTORS
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

AUDIT REVIEW

REDEMPTION OF DEBENTURES

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year the committee met three times to review company’s financial results, internal control systems, risk management policies 

and internal audit reports. The audit committee of the Company comprises of three members. The proceedings of the committee were in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

The AD Hydro Power Ltd, a subsidiary company is in the process of developing 192 MW hydro electric project in the state of Himachal 

Pradesh. The Company had started the construction of the project in early 2005 and the project is likely to be operational by July, 2010. 

The Annual Report for the year 2009- 10 and Accounts for the year ended on March, 10 as required under Section 212 of the 

Companies Act, 1956 of the said subsidiary Company is attached. 

Statutory Auditors’ Report to the members and comments of the Board of Directors thereon annexed hereto and form part of this report 

as required under Section 217(3) of the Companies Act, 1956.

During the financial year 2009-2010, amounting to Rs. 22.2 Millions have been redeemed.

During the year under review, the inflow of foreign exchange was 75.982 Million and outflow of foreign exchange was Rs. 20.070 

million. 

The company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year under report. Information required to be disclosed under 

Section 217 (1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the report of Board of Directors) 

Rules, 1988 has been given in Part (B) of the Annexure forming part of this Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

AUDITORS

AUDITORS’ REMARKS

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages the 

attainment of the highest levels of transparency, accountability and 

equity, in all facets of its operations, and all its interactions with the 

stakeholders including shareholders, employees, customers, 

government, suppliers and lenders and to build the confidence of the 

society in general. The Company believes in adopting the philosophy 

of professionalism, transparency and accountability in all areas and is 

committed to pursue growth by adhering to the highest national and 

international standards of Corporate Governance. 

The majority of the board comprises of Non-Executive Directors who 

play a critical role in imparting balance to the Board processes by 

bringing an Independent judgment to bear on issues of strategy, 

performance, resources, standards of Company conduct, etc. The 

audit committee of the board meets regularly and provides assurance 

to the Board on the adequacy of internal control systems and financial 

systems. The Corporate governance policy followed by the Company 

represents the value framework, the ethical framework and the moral 

framework under which business decisions are taken.

M/s S. R. Batliboi & Co., Chartered Accountants, has conveyed their 

willingness for re appointment as statutory auditors of the Company 

for the financial year ending on 31st March, 2010. The Company has 

also received consent letter from S.R. Batliboi & Co., Chartered 

Accountants, under section 224(1) (b) of the Companies Act, 1956 

being eligible showing willingness for their appointment as statutory 

auditors of the Company for the financial year ending on 31st March, 

2011. The Board recommends for the appointment of M/s S.R. 

Batliboi & Co., Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of the 

Company. 

The observations made by the Auditors with reference to the Notes to 

the Accounts for the year under report are self-explanatory and require 

no further comments from the Board.

The Directors wish to place on record their deep appreciation for 

continued guidance and support received from the Ministry of Power, 

Government of Himachal Pradesh, Himachal Pradesh State Electricity 

Board, Punjab State Electricity Board, Power Trading Corporation 

Limited, Commercial Banks, Financial Institutions and other 

Governmental Departments. The Board would also like to express 

great appreciation for the commitment and contribution of its 

employees at all levels achievement and looks forward to their 

continued support and cooperation in the coming years as well. 

Last but not least, the Company thanks its shareholders for the trust 

reposed in the Management and their unstinted support. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

                                                      

Place: Noida Ravi Jhunjhunwala

Date: 2nd June, 2010 Chairman and Managing Director
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ANNEXURE II TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT
                                  

Information pursuant to Section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of employees) 

Rules, 1975 and forming part of Directors Report for the year ended 31st March 2010 are given hereunder:

I. Persons employed for the full year

1. Mr. Ravi Chairman 51.004 B.Com (Hons), 30 55 1.11.2001

Jhunjhunwala & MD MBA

2. Mr. M.M. CEO 4.532 B Tech. (Civil), 32 56 11.09.2008

Madan MBA

Sl. Qualification Experience Age Date of 

No. (Rs. in Million) Commencement 

 of Employment

Name Designation Remuneration

ANNEXURE I TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS PURSUANT TO THE COMPANIES

(DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS IN THE REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES, 1988

1. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY – NIL

2. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION – NIL

3. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

a) Repair & Maintenance 16.281 –

b) Traveling Expenses 2.066 0.560 

c) Professional Expenses 1.570 18.120

d) Fees and Subscription 0.153 0.011 

Total 20.070 18.691 

Others (Sale of Voluntary Emission Rights) 75.982 66.528

Total 75.982 66.528

I) Foreign Exchange Outgo This Year Previous Year

Rs. In  Million

II) Foreign Exchange Earnings
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Auditors' Report

To 

The Members of Malana Power Company Limited

1.	 We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of 
Malana Power Company Limited (‘the Company’) 
as at March 31, 2010 and also the Profit and Loss 
Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year 
ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s 
management.  Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit.

2.	 We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in India.  
Those Standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2003 (as amended) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of 
Section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose 
in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

4.	 Without qualifying our opinion, attention is invited to 
Note 13 of Schedule 20 of the financial statements, 
regarding management’s assessment about 
obtaining the necessary clearances for execution 
of the Bara Bangal project (having capital work 
in progress of Rs. 663,073 thousand as at March 
31, 2010) as well as obtaining extension of time 
limit for submission of Detailed Project Report 
(DPR). Accordingly, the management believes 
that no adjustments are required to the financial 
statements in this regard. We have relied upon such 
management’s assessment and no adjustments 
have been made to the financial statements for the 
above matters.

5.	 Further to our comments in the Annexure referred 
to in paragraph 3 above, we report that:

	 i.	 We have obtained all the information and 
explanations, which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of 
our audit;

ii.	I n our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as appears from our examination of those 
books;

iii.	 The balance sheet, profit and loss account and cash 
flow statement dealt with by this report are in 
agreement with the books of account;

iv.	 In our opinion, the balance sheet, profit and loss 
account and cash flow statement dealt with 
by this report comply with the accounting 
standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of 
section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956.

v.	O n the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors, as on March 31, 2010, and 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, we 
report that none of the directors is disqualified 
as on March 31, 2010 from being appointed 
as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-
section (1) of section 274 of the Companies 
Act, 1956.

	 vi.	I n our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, 
the said accounts give the information required 
by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India;

		  a)	 in the case of the balance sheet, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2010; 

		  b)	 in the case of the profit and loss account, 
of the profit for the year ended on that 
date; and

		  c)	 in the case of cash flow statement, of 
the cash flows for the year ended on that 
date.

For  S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Firm registration number: 301003E
Chartered Accountants

per Raj Agrawal
Partner 
Membership No.: 82028

Place	:	Gurgaon
Date	 :	June 2, 2010
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Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of 
even date
Re: Malana Power Company Limited (‘the Company’)

(i)	 (a)	T he Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets.  

	 (b)	 Fixed assets have been physically verified 
by the management during the year and no 
material discrepancies were identified on 
such verification.

	 (c)	 There was no substantial disposal of fixed 
assets during the year. 

(ii)	 (a)	T he management has conducted physical 
verification of inventory at reasonable 
intervals during the year.

	 (b)	 The procedures of physical verification of 
inventory followed by the management are 
reasonable and adequate in relation to the 
size of the Company and the nature of its 
business. 

	 (c)	T he Company is maintaining proper records 
of inventory and no material discrepancies 
were noticed on physical verification.

(iii)	 (a)	T he Company has granted loan to one 
Company covered in the register maintained 
under section 301 of the Companies Act, 
1956. The maximum amount involved during 
the year was Rs. 4,262,368 thousand and the 
year- end balance of loan granted to such 
company was Rs. 3,750,520 thousand.  

	 (b)	I n our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the rate of 
interest and other terms and conditions for 
such loan are not prima facie prejudicial to 
the interest of the Company.

	 (c)	 As informed to us and as per the terms of 
the Subordination Loan agreement with 
the lenders, the loan granted and interest 
thereon is re-payable after the payment 
is made to outside lenders and once the 
project commences commercial operations. 
Accordingly, the Company has not demanded 
repayment of any such loan and interest 
thereon during the year and there has been 
no default on the part of the party to whom 
the money has been lent. 

	 (d)	T here is no overdue amount of loans granted 
to companies, firms or other parties listed in 
the register maintained under section 301 of 
the Companies Act, 1956.

	 (e)	T he Company has not taken any loans, secured 
or unsecured from companies, firms or other 
parties covered in the register maintained 
under section 301 of the Companies Act, 
1956. Accordingly, provisions of clauses 
4(iii) (f) and (g) of the Companies (Auditor’s 
Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) are not 
applicable to the Company.

(iv)	I n our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, there is an adequate 
internal control system commensurate with the size 
of the Company and the nature of its business, for 
the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for 
the sale of power.  During the course of our audit, 
no major weakness has been noticed in the internal 
control system in respect of these areas. During 
the course of our audit, we have not observed any 
continuing failure to correct major weakness in 
internal control system of the company. Due to the 
nature of its business, the Company is not required 
to sell any services.  

(v)	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations 
provided by the management, we are of the 
opinion that the particulars of contracts or 
arrangements referred to in section 301 of the 
Companies Act, 1956 that need to be entered 
into the register maintained under section 301 
have been so entered.

	 (b)	I n our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the transactions 
made in pursuance of such contracts or 
arrangements exceeding the value of Rupees 
five lakhs have been entered into during the 
financial year at prices which are reasonable 
having regard to the prevailing market prices 
at the relevant time.

(vi) 	T he Company has not accepted any deposits from 
the public.

(vii)	I n our opinion, the Company has an internal audit 
system commensurate with the size and nature of 
its business.

(viii) 	We have broadly reviewed the books of account 
maintained by the Company pursuant to the 
rules made by the Central Government for the 
maintenance of cost records under section 209(1)
(d) of the Companies Act, 1956, and are of the 
opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts 
and records have been made and maintained.

(ix)	 (a)	T he Company is regular in depositing with 
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory 
dues including provident fund, investor 
education and protection fund, income-tax, 
sales-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, customs 
duty, excise duty, cess and other material 
statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions 
relating to employees’ state insurance are not 
applicable to the Company.

		  Further, since the Central Government 
has till date not prescribed the amount of 
cess payable under section 441 A of the 
Companies Act,1956, we are not in a position 
to comment upon the regularity  or otherwise 
of the company in depositing the same.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of provident fund, investor education 
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and protection fund, income-tax, sales tax, 
wealth-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise 
duty, cess and other undisputed statutory 
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a 
period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable.

	 (c)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, there are no dues of income tax, 
sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, customs 
duty, excise duty and cess which have not 
been deposited on account of any dispute.

(x) 	T he Company has no accumulated losses at the 
end of the financial year and it has not incurred cash 
losses in the current and immediately preceding 
financial year.

(xi) 	 Based on our audit procedures and as per 
the information and explanations given by the 
management, we are of the opinion that the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues 
to a bank or debenture holders. There are no dues 
outstanding to any financial institution. 

(xii) 	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on the documents and records 
produced to us, the Company has not granted 
loans and advances on the basis of security by 
way of pledge of shares, debentures and other 
securities.

(xiii) 	I n our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or 
a nidhi / mutual benefit fund / society. Therefore, 
the provisions of clause 4(xiii) of the Companies 
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) are 
not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) 	In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in 
or trading in shares, securities, debentures and 
other investments. Accordingly, the provisions of 
clause 4(xiv) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2003 (as amended) are not applicable to the 
Company.

(xv) 	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has given guarantee for 
loans taken by its subsidiary from bank or financial 
institutions, the terms and conditions whereof, in 
our opinion, are not prima-facie prejudicial to the 
interest of the Company.

(xvi) 	Based on information and explanations given to us 
by the management, term loans were applied for 
the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(xvii) 	According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on an overall examination of the 
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no 
funds raised on short-term basis have been used 
for long-term investment.

(xviii)	The Company has not made any preferential 
allotment of shares to parties or companies covered 
in the register maintained under section 301 of the 
Companies Act, 1956.

(xix)	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has created security or charge 
in respect of debentures outstanding during the 
year.

(xx)	D uring the year under review, the Company has 
not raised money through public issues; hence, 
clause 4 (xx) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2003 (as amended) is not applicable to the 
Company.

(xxi)	 Based upon the audit procedures performed for 
the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of 
the financial statements and as per the information 
and  explanations given by the management, we 
report that no fraud on or by the Company has been 
noticed or reported during the course of our audit. 

For  S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Firm registration number: 301003E
Chartered Accountants

per Raj Agrawal
Partner 
Membership No.: 82028

Place	:	Gurgaon
Date	 :	June 2, 2010
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2010

As per our report of even date
For S. R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm Registration No. : 301003E 
Chartered Accountants

per Raj Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 82028

Place	 :	Gurgaon 
Dated	 :	June 2, 2010

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

RAVI JHUNJHUNWALA 
Chairman & Managing Director

Rohini Roshanara Sood 
Director

Bharat Singh 
Company Secretary

Place : Noida
Date : June 2, 2010

(` ’000)
  Schedules As at  

March 31, 2010
As at  

March 31, 2009
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders’ Funds
Share capital 1 1,475,257  1,475,257 
Reserves and surplus 2 7,187,273  6,198,062 
     8,662,530  7,673,319 
Secured loans 3  3,279,315  1,399,735 
Unsecured loans 4  –  198,261 
     3,279,315  1,597,996 
Deferred Tax Liability (net) 5  226,130  224,997 
TOTAL   12,167,975 9,496,312 
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assets 6 
Gross block  3,288,874 3,290,738 
Less : Accumulated depreciation/amortisation  1,194,523 996,809 
Net block  2,094,351  2,293,929 
Capital work in progress (including capital advances)   735,871  690,017 
   2,830,222 2,983,946 
Investments 7 4,929,556 4,929,556 
Current Assets, Loans and Advances
Inventories 8 19,736  20,052 
Sundry debtors 9  41,220  21,608 
Cash and bank balances 10 59,123  26,152 
Other current assets 11 560,029  199,962 
Loans and advances 12  4,035,629  1,657,423 
    4,715,737 1,925,197 
Less: Current Liabilities and Provisions
 Current Liabilities 13 293,935  305,711 
 Provisions 14 13,605  36,676 
    307,540 342,387 
Net Current Assets   4,408,197 1,582,810 
TOTAL   12,167,975 9,496,312 
Notes to Accounts 20
The Schedules referred to above and notes to accounts form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2010 

As per our report of even date
For S. R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm Registration No. : 301003E 
Chartered Accountants

per Raj Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 82028

Place	 :	Gurgaon 
Dated	 :	June 2, 2010

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

RAVI JHUNJHUNWALA 
Chairman & Managing Director

Rohini Roshanara Sood 
Director

Bharat Singh 
Company Secretary

Place : Noida
Date : June 2, 2010

(` ’000)
Schedules For year ended  

March 31, 2010
For year ended  
March 31, 2009

INCOME      
Turnover   1,619,439 1,853,616 
Less : Discount on prompt payments  31,997 37,232 
Less : Handling charges   7,325 8,674 
Less : Unscheduled interchange charges   13,392 12,272 
Turnover (net)   1,566,725 1,795,438 
Other income 15 446,551  269,182 
TOTAL  2,013,276  2,064,620 
EXPENDITURE      
Wheeling Cost  15,434 18,149 
Personnel Expenses 16 38,480  32,752 
Operating and other Expenses 17 166,889  131,506 
Depreciation 6 199,646 201,292 
Financial Expenses 18 426,871 240,505 
TOTAL   847,320  624,204 
Profit before tax and prior period items  1,165,956 1,440,416 
Prior Period Income (represents surrender value of 
keyman insurance policy)

   28,528  – 

Profit before tax   1,194,484 1,440,416 
Current Tax (including ` 1,198 thousand (Previous year 
Rs Nil) pertaining to earlier years)

   204,140 163,199 

Deferred tax charge / (credit)   1,133  1,299 
Fringe benefit tax   –  1,150 
Total tax expense   205,273 165,648 
Net Profit    989,211  1,274,768 
Balance brought forward from previous year   2,924,050  1,643,727 
Profit available for appropriation   3,913,261 2,918,495 
APPROPRIATION:      
Transfer from debenture redemption reserve    5,556  5,555 
TOTAL    5,556  5,555 
Surplus carried to balance sheet   3,918,817 2,924,050 
Earnings per share (figures are not annualised) (in `)      
– Basic/Diluted (Nominal value ` 10 per share) 19  6.71  8.98 
Notes to Accounts 20    
The Schedules referred to above and the notes to accounts form an integral part of the Profit and Loss Account.
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SCHEDULES to the Accounts

Schedule 1: Share Capital
(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

Authorised  
160,000,000 (Previous year 160,000,000) equity 
shares of ` 10 each 

  1,600,000   1,600,000 

Issued and Subscribed        
147,525,731 (Previous year 147,525,731) equity 
shares of ` 10 each 

  1,475,257   1,475,257 

Paid-up        
147,525,731 (Previous year 147,525,731) equity 
shares of ` 10 each, fully paid up * 

 1,475,257   1,475,257 

*Of the above 75,238,123 (Previous year 
75,238,123) equity shares are held by Bhilwara 
Energy Ltd., the holding Company 

       

    1,475,257   1,475,257 

Schedule 2: Reserves and surplus
(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

Securities premium account   3,254,567  3,254,567 
Debenture redemption reserve        
Balance as per last account 19,445   25,000  
Transferred to profit and loss account  (5,556) 13,889 (5,555) 19,945
Profit and loss account   3,918,817   2,924,050 
    7,187,273   6,198,062 

Schedule 3: Secured loans
(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

Debentures
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of  
` 1,000 thousand each  
(Refer Note 1 below)

 55,555   77,778 

Loans and advances from banks  
(refer note 2 below)

     

Term loans
– R upee loans 3,180,243     755,167 
–  Foreign currency loans 43,517 3,223,760   66,790 
Short term loans
–  From banks (refer note 3 below)    –    500,000 
     3,279,315    1,399,735 
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Notes:

1.	 Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) are secured by way of first mortgage and charge on land 
situated at village Budasan (Gujarat) together with all estate rights etc., present & future, of the Company and 
further secured by irrevocable and unconditional guarantee extended by Infrastructure Leasing & Financial 
Services Ltd. (IL&FS). The aforesaid guarantee of IL&FS is secured by way of first charge on all immovable 
and movable properties, present and future, of the Company on pari-passu basis.150, 7.75% debentures of  
` 1,000 thousand each privately placed with General Insurance Corporation Ltd., New India Assurance Co. Ltd. 
and Punjab National Bank equally and 100, 7.865% debentures of ` 1,000 thousand each privately placed with 
Bank Of Baroda were redeemable at par in 36 equal quarterly instalments commencing from 31st December 
2003. However, the above debentures were subject to a call and put option exercisable by the debenture 
holders and the Company respectively in November 2007. New India Assurance Co. Ltd (NIA) exercised the 
call option and 50 debentures of ` 1,000 thousand each held by NIA were redeemed completely during the 
financial year 2007-08. Other debenture holders opted to hold the debentures and repayment is being made as 
per the schedule. Redemption of ` 722 thousand (previous year ` 611 thousand) on each debenture has been 
made till date.

2.	 Term loans from various banks are secured by way of first mortgage/charge on all the immovable properties 
wherever situated and hypothecation of all other assets, rights etc., present & future, of the Company on pari-
passu basis.

3.	 Short term loan were secured by subservient charge or movable fixed assets of the Company.

4.	D ebentures and loans and advances from banks aggregating to ` 757,982 thousand (Previous year ` 832,221 
thousand) are repayable within one year.

Schedule 4 : Unsecured Loans :
(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

Short-term loans & advances  
– From banks –  83,333 
– From holding Company –  114,928 

–  198,261 

Schedule 5 : Deferred Tax Liability (net) :	
(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Differences in depreciation and other differences in block of fixed assets 
as per tax books and financial books

225,872 224,997 

Income taxable on receipt 258  – 
Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities 226,130 224,997 
Deferred Tax Assets  –  – 
Gross Deferred Tax Assets  –  – 
Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 226,130 224,997
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SCHEDULE 6: FIXED ASSETS
(` ’000)

Land– 
Freehold

Road & 
Building

Civil Works Transmission 
Lines

Plant & 
Machinery

Furniture & 
Fittings

Office 
& Other 

Equipments

Vehicles Total 
Tangible 

Assets

Software Total 
Intangible 

Assets

Total Previous 
Year

Gross Block

At April 1, 2009  21,517  224,958  1,847,265  199,670  958,063  5,743  9,934  11,890  3,279,040  11,698  11,698  3,290,738 3,286,337 

Additions  –  –  –  –  21  11  218  429  679  –  –  679 4,825 

Deductions/ Adjustments  –  –  –  –  –  –  1,441  1,102  2,543  –  –  2,543 424 

As at March 31, 2010  21,517  224,958  1,847,265  199,670  958,084  5,754  8,711  11,217  3,277,176  11,698  11,698  3,288,874  3,290,738 

Depreciation

At April 1, 2009  –  56,645  504,896  80,593  325,868  3,751  6,692  8,210  986,655  10,154  10,154  996,809 795,685 

For the year  –  7,572  120,357  10,549  58,486  360  891  928  199,143  503  503  199,646 201,292 

Deletions / Adjustments  –  –  –  –  –  –  1,129  803  1,932  –  –  1,932 168 

As at March 31, 2010  –  64,217  625,253  91,142  384,354  4,111  6,454  8,335  1,183,866  10,657  10,657  1,194,523  996,809 

Net Block March 31, 2010  21,517  160,741  1,222,012  108,528  573,730  1,643  2,257  2,882  2,093,310  1,041  1,041  2,094,351  2,293,929 

Net Block March 31, 2009  21,517  168,312  1,342,370  119,077  632,195  1,993  3,241  3,680  2,292,385  1,544  1,544  2,293,929 

Capital Work in Progress

Building under erection  71,705  37,430 

Capital Advances  1,093  12,839 

Advance for project 
allotted (refer note 3 
below)

 663,073  639,748 

Sub Total  735,871  690,017 

Total Fixed Assets as at 
March 31, 2010

 21,517  160,741  1,222,012  108,528  573,730  1,643  2,257  2,882  2,093,310  1,041  1,041  2,830,222 

Total Fixed Assets as at 
March 31, 2009

 21,517  168,312  1,342,370  119,077  632,195  1,993  3,241  3,680  2,292,385  1,544  1,544  2,983,946 

Notes :
1)	 Road & Building includes cost of road ` 122,838 thousand (Previous year ` 122,838 thousand) constructed on forest land diverted for the project under irrevocable right to use.
2)	 Transmission Lines includes ` 4,181 thousand (Previous year ` 4,181 thousand) towards cost of land and compensation paid to Forest Department for construction of Transmission towers under irrevocable 

right to use.
3)	 Includes ` 51,073 thousand (previous year ` 27,748 thousand) towards consultancy and other expenses on project allotted (Also refer Note 13 of Schedule 20).

Schedule 7 : Investments :

(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

Long Term Investments (At Cost)

In Subsidiary Company Unquoted

492,955,640 (Previous year 430,155,640) Equity Shares of ` 10 
each fully paid of AD Hydro Power Limited (pledged with security 
trustee on behalf of lenders of AD Hydro Power Limited)

4,929,556 4,301,556 

Share application money pending allottment in AD Hydro Power 
Limited

– 628,000 

 4,929,556 4,929,556 

Schedule 8: Inventories

(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

Stores and spares (including material lying with third parties  
` 2,043 thousand, previous year ` Nil)

19,736 20,052 

19,736 20,052
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Schedule 9: Sundry Debtors

(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

(Unsecured, Considered good)

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months – – 

Other debts  41,220  21,608 

 41,220 21,608 

Schedule 10: Cash and Bank Balances

(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

Cash on hand  597 318 

Balances with scheduled banks:  

 O n current accounts 25,526 23,815 

 O n deposit accounts  30,200  1,054 

 O n margin money account 2,800 965

59,123 26,152

Included in deposit accounts are :

–  Fixed deposit of ` 200 thousand (previous year ` 200 thousand) pledged with the H.P. Government Sales Tax 
Department and ` Nil thousand (previous year ` 854 thousand) pledged with Himachal Prades State Electricity 
Board. 

Schedule 11: Other Current Assets

(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

Interest accrued on deposits and others 51 39 

Interest accrued on loan given to subsidiary Company 559,211 199,923 

Surrender Value of Keyman Insurance Policy 767  - 

560,029 199,962 

Schedule 12: Loans and Advances

(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

Unsecured, considered good 

Loans to employees  1,944 3,032 

Loan to subsidiary Company (long term) 3,750,520 1,360,756 

Advances for projects (refer note no 10 of schedule 20)  252,630 252,630 

Other advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be 
received

27,459 38,190 

Deposits - others  3,076 2,815 

4,035,629 1,657,423 

Included in Loans and Advances are :

i. D ues from the company under the same Management  

    AD Hydro Power Limited 
    (Maximum amount outstanding during the year ` 4,262,368 

thousand (Previous year ` 3,292,519 thousand)

3,750,520 1,360,756 
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Schedule 13: Current Liabilities
(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

Sundry creditors 
(a) Outstanding dues of Micro & Small Enterprises * – – 
(b) Outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro & Small 

Enterprises (*Refer note no 11 of Schedule 20)
32,530 35,747 

Deposits from holding company (refer note no. 10 of schedule 20) 252,630 252,630 
Deposits from contractors and others 4,475 1,190 
Interest accrued on loan from holding Company – 10,787 
Other liabilities 4,300 5,357

293,935 305,711 
Creditors includes
Managing Director's commission payable  12,457 14,643

Schedule 14: Provisions
(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax (net of advance fringe benefit tax  
` Nil, (Previous Year ` 3,133 thousand))

 –  17 

Provision for Wealth Tax  –  30 
Provision for Income Tax (net of advance tax ` 465,487 thousand 
(Previous year ` 280,234 thousand))

 5,595  28,258 

Provision for Gratuity  –  1,002 
Provision for Long term compensated absences 3,105  2,161 
Provision for Continuity Linked Bonus  4,905 5,208 

 13,605  36,676 

Schedule 15: Other Income
(` ’000)

For the year ended  
March 31, 2010

For the year ended 
March 31, 2009

Interest from subsidiary company (Gross, tax deducted at source  
` 49,788 thousand (Previous year ` 14,647 thousand)

359,288 199,923 

Interest on bank deposits (Gross, Tax deducted at source ` 169 
thousand, (Previous year ` 56 thousand))

886  248 

Interest on income tax refund – 517 
Foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 8,012  – 
Profit on sale/discard on fixed assets (net)  –  270 
Sale of voluntary emission reductions 75,982  66,528 
Unspent liabilities written back 1,200  – 
Surrender Value of keyman Insurance policy 767  – 
Miscellaneous income  416 1,696

446,551  269,182 

Schedule 16: Personnel Expenses	
(` ’000)

For the year ended  
March 31, 2010

For the year ended 
March 31, 2009

Salaries , wages and other expenses 31,214 25,030 
Contribution to provident funds 2,034 1,806 
Contribution to superannuation funds 400 1,028 
Gratuity expenses  – 971 
Long Term Compensated Absences 943 131 
Workmen and staff welfare expenses 3,889 3,786 

38,480  32,752 
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Schedule 17: Operating and Other Expenses
(` ’000)

For the year ended  
March 31, 2010

For the year ended 
March 31, 2009

Power and fuel 3,626 3,822 
Repairs and maintenance 
 – Plant and machinery 51,920 27,721 
 – Civil works 316 307 
 – Buildings 706 701 
 – Others  1,081 1,577 
Rent  3,882 3,623 
Rates and taxes  3,335 1,121 
Insurance  5,267 12,260 
Traveling & Conveyance 8,008 6,398 
Legal and professional expenses 6,054 4,231 
Director's remuneration  38,547 9,503 
Commission to managing director  12,457  14,643 
Auditor's remuneration :  
 – Audit fee  908 552 
 – Fees for international reporting  –  348 
 – Fees for special audit  303  – 
 – Fees for certification  276 239 
 – Out of pocket expenses  7 4 
Loss on fixed assets sold /discarded (net) 223  – 
Foreign exchange fluctuation (net)  – 17,042 
Donations and contributions (other than to political parties)  763  1,217 
Expenses on sale of Voluntary emission reductions (including 
commission)

 15,453 10,481 

Miscellaneous expenses  13,757 15,716 
166,889  131,506 

Schedule 18: Financial Expenses
(` ’000)

For the year ended  
March 31, 2010

For the year ended 
March 31, 2009

Interest
– On term loans and debentures 311,832  101,293 
– To banks 12,030  136,481 
– To others  –  1,000 
Bank charges including guarantee commission and processing fees 
(net of upfront fees / commitment charges reimbursed by subsidiary 
Company ` 8,273 thousand, (previous year ` 7,750 thousand))

 103,009 1,731 

426,871 240,505 

Schedule 19 : Earnings Per Share (EPS)	
(` ’000)

For the year ended  
March 31, 2010

For the year ended 
March 31, 2009

Net profit as per profit and loss account  989,211  1,274,768 
Equity shares at the beginnning of the year  147,525,731  139,170,176 
Equity shares at the end of the year  147,525,731  147,525,731 
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic/
diluted EPS

 147,525,731  142,003,986 

Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share (in Rupees)  6.71  8.98 
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SCHEDULE – 20: NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Nature of Operations1.	

	 Malana Power Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’) is engaged in the generation of 
hydro electric power and development of hydro power projects.

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies2.	

Basis of preparation(a)	

	 The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Notified accounting 
standards by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and the relevant provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual 
basis. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with 
those used in the previous year.

Use of Estimates(b)	

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations 
during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of 
current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Fixed Assets(c)	

	 Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises 
the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended 
use. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of fixed assets which takes substantial period of time to get 
ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready 
to be put to use. 

	T he carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of 
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying 
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s 
net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 
to their present value at the weighted average cost of capital.

Depreciation(d)	

On the assets of generating unit and other Plant & Machinery, depreciation is provided on straight-line (i)	
method at the rates based on their estimated useful lives, which corresponds to the rates prescribed in 
Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.

On fixed assets other than those covered under (i) above, depreciation is provided on written down value (ii)	
method at the rates based on their estimated useful lives, which corresponds to the rates prescribed in 
Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956. 

Intangible Asset(e)	

	 Computer software purchased from outside are amortized on written down value method at the rate of 40% 
per annum based on its estimated useful life.

Leases(f)	

	 Where the Company is the lessee

	 Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased 
item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the 
Profit and Loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Investments(g)	

	 Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as 
current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments. Current investments are 
carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long Term investments 
are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other than 
temporary in the value of investments.
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Inventories(h)	

	I nventories comprising of components and stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable 
value. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Revenue recognition(i)	

	 Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the revenue can be reliably measured.

8 Sale of Electricity

8R evenue from sale of electricity is recognised on the basis of billable electricity (over and above free 
supply to Himachal Pradesh’s State Government) scheduled to be transmitted to the customers, which 
approximates the actual electricity transmitted.

8 Interest

8R evenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate 
applicable.

8 Voluntary emission rights (VER)

8 Revenue is recognised as and when the VER’s are certified and sold and it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Company.

(j)8 Foreign currency translation

8 Foreign currency transactions

Initial Recognition(i) 	

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency 
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the 
transaction.

Conversion(ii) 	

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are 
carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction. 

Exchange Differences(iii) 	

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting of such monetary 
items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported 
in previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which they 
arise. 

(k)	 Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Superannuation Schemes are defined (i)	
contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the Profit & Loss Account of the year when 
the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no obligations other than the contribution 
payable to the respective fund/trust.

Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation on (ii)	
projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. 

Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term compensated (iii)	
absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected 
unit credit method at the end of each financial year.

Liability under continuity linked loyalty bonus scheme is provided for on actuarial valuation basis, which (iv)	
is done as per projected unit credit method at the end of each financial year.

Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to profit and loss account and are not deferred.(v)	

(l)	 Income taxes

	T ax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected 
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to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. Deferred 
income taxes reflect the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting 
income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

	D eferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at 
the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable 
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can 
be realised. In situations where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all 
deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that 
they can be realised against future taxable profits. 

	T he carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The Company writes-
down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or 
virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which 
deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably 
certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

	 MAT credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the 
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the Minimum Alternative 
Tax (MAT) credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations 
contained in Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is 
created by way of a credit to the profit and loss account and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The 
Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit 
Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay 
normal Income Tax during the specified period.

(m)	Earnings Per Share

	 Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid 
equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were entitled to participate 
in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting year.

	 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable 
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are 
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(n)	 Provisions

	 A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable 
estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best 
estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance 
sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

	 (o)	 Cash and Cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an original 
maturity of three months or less.

The Company’s activities during the year involved generation of the Hydro power (Refer Note 1). Considering 3.	
the nature of Company’s business and operations, there are no separate reportable segments (business and/ 
or geographical) in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 17 ‘Segment Reporting’ issued 
by the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 and hence, there are no additional disclosures to be 
provided other than those already provided in the financial statements.

The Company is eligible for tax holiday under Section 80-IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961. In view of unabsorbed 4.	
depreciation in the initial years, the Company has not availed the tax holiday benefit up to accounting year  
2006-07. However, based on its profitability, it has decided to avail the deduction from the accounting year 
2007-08 and will continue to avail it till accounting year 2015-16. The Company is liable to pay Income-Tax for 
the year under the provisions of Section 115JB of the Income-Tax Act, 1961.

The Company has the necessary permission from the Government of Himachal Pradesh to own, operate & 5.	
maintain the project and sell power for a period of forty years from the date of commercial operation i.e. July 
5, 2001 with the option to avail a further extension for a maximum period of twenty years after renegotiation of 
terms and conditions.
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Contingent Liabilities not provided for6.	

	 (a)	 Guarantee given for loans availed by AD Hydro Power Limited, subsidiary company, amounting ` 800,000 
thousand (Previous year ` 450,000 thousand).

	 (b)	 Claims made against the Company not acknowledged as debts – 

Demand from Divisional Forest Officer in respect of damages to forest trees (i)	 ` 3,421 thousand (Previous 
year - ` 3,421 thousand).

Demand of Stamp Duty and registration fees (ii)	 ` 40,990 thousand (Previous year ` 40,990 thousand). 

The Company has been advised that these cases are not probable to be decided against the Company and 
therefore no provision for the above is required.

Capital Commitments7.	

	E stimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (Net of 
advances) ` 656,016 thousand (Previous Year ` 761,145 thousand)

Related Party Disclosures8.	

Names of related p(a)	 arties

Holding Company : Bhilwara Energy Limited

Subsidiary Company : AD Hydro Power Limited 

Enterprises having significant 
influence over the Company

: SN Power Holdings Singapore Pte. Ltd.

Fellow Subsidiary Companies : Indo Canadian Consultancy Services Limited,

Green Ventures Private Limited

Key Management Personnel : Mr. Ravi Jhunjhunwala, Chairman & Managing Director

Relatives of key Management 
personnel

: Mrs. Rita Jhunjhunwala  
(Wife of the Chairman & Managing Director)

Mr. Riju Jhunjhunwala  
(Son of the Chairman & Managing Director)

Mr. Rishabh Jhunjhunwala  
(Son of the Chairman & Managing Director)

Enterprises owned or significantly 
influenced by key Management 
personnel or their relatives

: HEG Limited, RSWM Limited. 
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(b)	 Transaction with related parties
(` ‘000)

Nature of Transaction

Holding Company/ 
Enterprises 

having significant 
influence over the 

Company

Subsidiary/Fellow 
subsidiary Company

Key Management 
Personnel

Relative of Key 
Management 

Personnel

Enterprise 
over which key 
management 

personnel /relative 
having significant 

influence

March 
2010

March 
2009

March 
2010

March 
2009

March 
2010

March 
2009

March 
2010

March 
2009

March 
2010

March 
2009

Transactions during the year

Rent 

a) Mrs.Rita Jhunjhunwala 357 –

b) Mr. Rishabh Jhunjhunwala 1,709 1,740

c) Mr. Riju Jhunjhunwala 1,709 1,740

d) RSWM Limited 3,878 3,620

Consultancy service charges 
paid to Indo Canadian 
Consultancy Services Limited

14,895 220

Remuneration paid to Mr. Ravi 
Jhunjhunwala, 

10,019 9,503

Commission paid to Mr. Ravi 
Jhunjhunwala, 

12,446 14,643

Value of other perquisite 
(assignment of Keyman 
insurance policy in favour of  
Mr. Ravi Jhunjhunwala)

28,528 –

Reimbursement of expenses 
paid to HEG Limited

2,382 2,266

Reimbursement of expenses 
paid to RSWM Limited

381 546

Reimbursement of expenses paid 
to Indo Canadian Consultancy 
Services Limited

232 1034

Reimbursement of expenses 
paid to AD Hydro Power Limited

1,712 3,125

Reimbursement of expenses 
recovered from AD Hydro Power 
Limited

15,264 10,061

Reimbursement of expenses 
recovered from Indo Canadian 
Consultancy Services Limited

16,685 698

Share application money given to 
AD Hydro Power Limited (net)

 –  1,391,056

Shares acquired in AD Hydro 
Power Limited

628,000 763,056

Allotment of Shares to Bhilwara 
Energy Limited

– 42,613

Allotment of Shares to SN Power 
Holdings Singapore

– 40,942

Securities Premium on Allotment 
of shares to Bhilwara Energy 
Limited

– 532,667

Securities Premium on Allotment 
of shares to SN Power Holdings 
Singapore

– 511,778

Unsecured Loan repaid to 
Bhilwara Energy Limited 
(including interest)

202,237 646,602

Unsecured Loan taken from 
Bhilwara Energy Limited

76,521 761,700 

Unsecured Loan repaid by AD 
Hydro Power Limited

5,189,100 2,212,132

Unsecured loan taken from HEG 
Limited

– 150,000
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(` ‘000)

Nature of Transaction

Holding Company/ 
Enterprises 

having significant 
influence over the 

Company

Subsidiary/Fellow 
subsidiary Company

Key Management 
Personnel

Relative of Key 
Management 

Personnel

Enterprise 
over which key 
management 

personnel /relative 
having significant 

influence

Unsecured loan repaid to HEG 
Limited

– 150,000

Unsecured Loan given to AD 
Hydro Power Limited

7,615,100 3,356,741

Interest Income on Unsecured 
loan given to AD Hydro Power 
Limited

359,288 199,923

Interest expense on loan from 
HEG Limited

– 3,345

Balances outstanding as at the 
year end

As at 
March 

31, 2010

As at 
March 

31, 2009

As at 
March 31, 

2010

As at 
March 31, 

2009

As at 
March 

31, 2010

As at 
March 

31, 2009

As at 
March 

31, 2010

As at 
March 

31, 2009

As at 
Dec 31 

As at 
March 

31, 2010, 
2009

As at 
March 31, 

2009

Balances Receivable:

Investment in AD Hydro Power 
Limited

4,929,556 4,301,556

Unsecured Loan given to AD 
Hydro Power Limited

3,750,520 1,360,756   

Interest amount recoverable on 
Unsecured Loan

559,211 199,923

Share Application Money 
pending allotment

– 628,000

Receivable from RSWM Limited – 157

Balances Payable:

SN Power Holdings, Singapore – 277

Interest payable on Unsecured 
Loan taken from Bhilwara Energy 
Limited

– 125,715

Deposit taken from Bhilwara 
Energy Limited

252,630 252,630

Indo Canadian Consultancy 
Services Limited

– 1,558   

Mr. Ravi Jhunjhunwala 12,457 14,643

Guarantees given by the 
Company on behalf of AD Hydro 
Power Limited

800,000 450,000

Payable to HEG Limited – 4,353

Supplementary Statutory Information 9.	 	
(` ’000)

Particulars March 2010 March 2009

(a) Managing Director Remuneration

Salaries 5,825 5,525

Commission 12,457 14,643

Rent paid 3,495 3,315

Contribution to Provident Fund 699 663

Other perquisites (assignment of Keyman insurance policy) 28,528 –

51,004 24,146

	 Notes:
	 a)	 As the future liability for the gratuity and earned leaves is provided on actuarial basis for the Company as a 

whole, the amount pertaining to the Directors is not ascertainable and therefore, not included.
	 b)	P erquisites have been considered as per taxable value as per Income Tax Act, 1961
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Particulars March 2010 March 2009

(b) Computation of net profit in accordance with Section 198 
read with Section 349 of the Companies Act, 1956 :
Profit for the year before taxation as per Profit & Loss Account 1,194,484 1,440,417

Add: Depreciation as per Profit & Loss Account 199,646 201,292

Directors’ remuneration 51,004 24,146

Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset 223 -

1,445,357 1,665,855

Less: Depreciation u/s 350 of the Companies Act 199,646 201,292

Profit on sale of Fixed Assets – 270

Net Profit in accordance with Section 198 and 349 1,245,711 1,464,292

Commission @ 1% of Net Profit 12,457 14,643

During the financial year 2007-08, the Company has paid 50% upfront premium of 10.	 ` 252,630 thousand to the 
Government of Himachal Pradesh as first instalment for the 140 MW Chango Yangthang HEP project which 
was awarded to the Company. This amount has been paid by the Company on behalf of its holding company, 
Bhilwara Energy Limited (‘BEL’) with an understanding that all rights, obligations, rewards and risks of this 
project will belong to BEL. For making the said payment, a corresponding amount of ` 252,630 thousand had 
been received from BEL in the financial year 2007-08, which has been shown under the head ‘deposits from 
holding company’ under ‘Current Liabilities’ in the financial statements. An agreement has already been entered 
into between the two shareholders - SN Power and Bhilwara Energy Limited and the Company, wherein BEL 
has agreed that all rights, obligations, rewards and risks of this project will belong to BEL and no liability there 
against will devolve on the Company. 

The Government of India has promulgated an Act namely The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 11.	
Act, 2006 which came into force with effect from October 2, 2006. As per the Act, the Company is required to 
identify the Micro, Small and Medium suppliers and pay them interest on overdue beyond the specified period 
irrespective of the terms agreed with the suppliers. As per the information available with the Company and relied 
upon by the auditors, none of the creditors fall under the definition of ‘supplier’ as per the Section 2(n) of the Act. 
In view of the above, the prescribed disclosures under Section 22 of the Act are not required to be made.

Leases12.	

	 In case of assets taken on Operating Lease:

	 Office premises and vehicles are obtained on cancellable operating leases. All these leases have a lease 
term varying between 3 to 5 years. There are no restrictions imposed by lease arrangements. There are no 
subleases.

(` ‘000)

Particulars For the 
year ended 

March 31, 2010

For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2009

Lease payments for the year 3,882 3,623

In an earlier year, the Company had given an upfront premium of 13.	 ` 612,000 thousand for 200 MW Bara 
Banghal HEP project in state of Himachal Pradesh. Further, the Company has incurred expenses in the nature 
of consultant fees and other expenses of ` 51,073 thousand in relation to this project. Thus, an amount of  
` 663,073 thousand is appearing as capital work in progress in respect of this project as at March 31, 2010. 

	 Approx. 21.46 hectares of land for the said project falls under the Dhauladhar WildLife Sanctuary, where no 
construction is permitted. The Company has filed an impleadment application with the Supreme Court of India 
for giving direction to the Wildlife Authority for processing and granting the technical clearance for the said 
project. Further, as per the terms of the Pre-Implementation Agreement signed with the State Government of 
Himachal Pradesh, the upfront premium of ` 612,000 thousand will get forfeited if the Detailed Project report 
(‘DPR’) of the project is not submitted by October 31, 2010, for which the Company has filed an application with 
the authorities for the extension of time limit for the submission of said DPR. Pending the decision on application 
by the Supreme Court of India for grant of the clearance and by the State Government for extension of the time 
limit, the Board of Directors are confident that the Company will get the necessary approvals shortly and will 
be able to complete the project within specified time frame and no provision thereagainst is required in these 
financial statements. 
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Gratuity (AS 15- Revised)14.	
	 The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Gratuity (being administered by a Trust) is computed as 

15 days salary for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of 6 months and is payable on 
retirement/ termination / resignation. The benefit vests on the employee completing 5 years of service. The 
Gratuity plan for the Company is a defined benefit scheme where annual contributions are deposited with a 
Gratuity Trust Fund established to provide gratuity benefits. The Trust Fund has taken a Scheme of Insurance, 
whereby these contributions are transferred to the insurer. The Company makes provision of such gratuity asset/ 
liability in the books of accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation as per the Projected unit credit method. 

	 The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the profit and loss account 
and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet:

	 Profit and Loss Account
	 Net employee benefits expense (recognised in Employee Cost):

Particulars For the year ended on  
March 31, 2010 

(` ’000)

For the year ended on  
March 31, 2009 

(` ’000)
Current Service Cost 490 564

Interest cost on benefit obligation 385 280
Expected return on plan assets (330) (160)
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in the year (592) 286
Past service cost - -
Net benefit expense (47) 971
Actual return on plan assets 877 162

	 Balance Sheet
	D etails of Provision for Gratuity: 

Particulars As at March 31, 2010 
(` ’000)

As at March 31, 2009 
(` ’000)

Defined benefit obligation 4,363 5,133
Fair value of plan assets 4,410 4,130

47 (1,002)
 Less: Unrecognised past service cost - -
 Plan asset / (liability) 47 (1,002)

	 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars For the year ended
 March 31, 2010 

(` ’000)

For the year ended
March 31, 2009 

(` ’000)
Opening defined benefit obligation 5,133 4,000
Interest cost 385 280
Current service cost 490 564
Benefits paid (1,600) -
Actuarial (gains)/ losses on obligation (45) 288
Closing defined benefit obligation 4,363 5,133

	 Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Particulars For the year ended
 March 31, 2010 

(` ’000)

For the year ended
March 31, 2009 

(` ’000)
Opening fair value of plan assets 4,130 1,998
Expected return 330 160
Contributions by employer 1,002 1971
Benefits paid (1,600) –
Actuarial gains / (losses) 547 2
Closing fair value of plan assets 4,410 4,130

	 The Defined benefit obligation amounting to ` 4,363 thousand is funded by assets amounting to ` 4,410 
thousand and the Company expects to contribute ` 1,002 thousand during the year 2010-11. 
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	T he major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Particulars For the year ended
 March 31, 2010

For the year ended
 March 31, 2009

% %

Investments with insurer 100 100

	T he overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, 
applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled. 

	T he principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Particulars For the year ended on 
March 31, 2010

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2009

% %

Discount Rate 7.50 7.00

Expected rate of return on assets 8.00 8.00

Future Salary Increase 5.00 4.50

Withdrawal rate 1 to 3 1 to 3

	 The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

	 Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows*:

(` ‘000s)

For the year ended 
March 31, 2010

For the year ended 
March 31, 2009

For the year ended 
March 31, 2008

Defined benefit obligation 4,363 5,133 4,000

Plan assets 4,410 4,130 1,198

Surplus / (deficit) 47 (1,002) (2,002)

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 24 (260) -

Experience adjustments on plan assets 547 2 -

	 * As the Company has adopted AS -15 (revised) in the year 2007-08, the above disclosures as required under 
Para 120 (n) have been made prospectively from the date the Company has first adopted the standard.

	 Defined Contribution Plan

(` ‘000s)

For the year ended 
March 31, 2010

For the year ended 
March 31, 2009

Contribution to Provident Fund 2034 1,806

Contribution to Superannuation Fund  400 1,028

2,434 2,834

Particulars of Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure as at the Balance Sheet date15.	

Particulars 2009-10 2008-09

Foreign Currency Loan ` 43,516,800  
(USD 960,000 @ 

closing rate of  
1USD = ` 45.33)

` 66,790,400  
(USD 1,280,000 @ 

closing rate of 
1USD = ` 52.18)

Provision against equipment supplied ` 2,846,356 
(CHF 66,816 @ 
closing rate of  

1CHF = ` 42.60)

` 8,495,410  
(CHF 187,000 @ 

closing rate of 
1CHF = ` 45.43)
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Additional information pursuant to the provisions of paragraphs 3, 4C and 4D of Part II of Schedule VI 16.	
to the Companies Act, 1956

	 a)	 Information in respect of Generation and Turnover: 

2009-10 2008-09
(i) Installed capacity (technically estimated) 86 MW 86 MW
(ii) Generation M.U. 305.790 360.050
(iii) Less:- Auxiliary Consumption and Associated 

Transmission Loss
M.U. 3.167 4.185

Free Energy to Govt. of H.P. M.U.  45.393 53.380
Free Energy to HPSEB for wheeling of power M.U. 10.289 12.099

(iv) Turnover (including impact of UI Charges – 
(2.764 ) M.U., (Previous year (1.26) MU)) 

M.U. 244.176 289.125

` ’000 1,619,439 1,853,616

	 b)	 Imported and indigenous stores and spare parts consumed (included under respective heads of 
profit & loss account) :

Percentage of total 
consumption

Value (` ’000)

Stores & Spares 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09
Imported 70.72 – 28,902 –
Indigenously obtained 29.28 100.00 11,967 13,218

100.00 100.00 40,869 13,218

	 c)	 Expenditure in foreign currency, net of TDS (Cash basis)

2009-10  
(` ‘000)

2008-09  
(` ‘000)

Travelling 2,066 560
Professional Services 1,570 18,120
Repair & Maintenance 16,281 –
Fee & Subscription 153 11
Others 1 -

	 d)	 Earnings in foreign currency (Cash basis)	2009-10

2009-10  
(` ‘000)

2008-09  
(` ‘000)

Others (Sale of Voluntary Emission Rights) 75,982 66,528

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped where necessary to confirm to this year’s classification. 17.	

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

RAVI JHUNJHUNWALA 
Chairman & Managing Director

Rohini Roshanara Sood 
Director

Bharat Singh 
Company Secretary

Place : Noida
Date : June 2, 2010

As per our report of even date
For S. R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm Registration No. : 301003E 
Chartered Accountants

per Raj Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 82028

Place	 :	Gurgaon 
Dated	 :	June 2, 2010
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Cash Flow Statement as at March 31, 2010

Particulars March 2010
` ’000

March 2009
` ’000

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net profit before taxation  1,194,485  1,440,416 

Adjustments for:

Depreciation  199,646  201,292 

Interest expenses  323,862  105,222 

(Profit) / Loss on fixed assets sold / discarded (net)  223  (270)

Provision for / (Reversal of) continuity linked bonus  (303)  306 

Provision for / (Reversal of) gratuity  (1,002)  (1,000)

Provision for / (Reversal of) compensated absences  944  131 

Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain)  (8,012)  17,042 

Interest income  (360,174)  (64,888)

Operating profit before working capital changes  1,349,669  1,698,251 

Movements in working capital:

(Increase) / Decrease in sundry debtors  (19,612)  7,999 

(Increase) in other current assets  (767)  – 

Decrease / (Increase) in loan and advances  11,559  (21,466)

Decrease / (Increase) in inventories  316  (471)

(Decrease) / Increase in current liabilities  (989)  21,134 

Cash generated from operations  1,340,176  1,705,447 

Direct taxes paid (Net of refund)  226,851  169,056 

Net cash from operating activities  1,113,325  1,536,391 

B. Cash flows from / (used in) investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets (including capital work in 
progress)

 (46,533)  (56,637)

Purchase of investments  –  (763,056)

Share application money paid  –  (628,000)

Loans and advances to subsidiary Company  (2,389,764)  (1,144,608)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  388  526 

Interest received (including received from subsidiary)  873  64,876 

Net cash from/ (used in) investing activities  (2,435,036)  (2,526,899)
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Particulars March 2010
` ’000

March 2009
` ’000

C. Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of share capital  –  1,127,999 

Fixed deposits redeemed  1,683  – 

Proceeds from / (Repayments of) Short term borrowings  (698,261)  198,261 

(Repayment of) long –term borrowings  (622,408)  (248,887)

Proceeds from long –term borrowings  3,010,000  – 

Interest paid  (334,649)  (94,435)

Net cash from financing activities  1,356,365  982,938 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents (A+B+C)

 34,654  (7,570)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
year

 24,469  32,039 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  59,123  24,469 

Components of cash and cash equivalents 

Cash on hand  597  318 

With banks –  on current accounts  25,526  23,815 

      –  on deposit accounts  30,200  200 

      –  on margin money account  2,800  136 

 59,123  24,469 

Notes:

1.	 Difference in the figure of cash and bank balance as per schedule 10 and as shown above of ` Nil thousand 
(Previous year ` 1,683 thousand) represents long term investment in fixed deposit with an original maturity of 
more than three months.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

RAVI JHUNJHUNWALA 
Chairman & Managing Director

Rohini Roshanara Sood 
Director

Bharat Singh 
Company Secretary

Place : Noida
Date : June 2, 2010

As per our report of even date
For S. R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm Registration No. : 301003E 
Chartered Accountants

per Raj Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 82028

Place	 :	Gurgaon 
Dated	 :	June 2, 2010
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1.	 Registration Details

	R egistration No.	 1	 9	 9	 5	 9					S    tate Code	 0	 6

	 Balance Sheet Date		  3	 1		  0	 3		  2	 0	 1	 0

		D  ate	   Month	  Year

2.	 Capital Raised during the year (Amount in ` Thousands)

	P ublic Issue				    –					R     ights Issue					     –			 

	 Bonus Issue				    –					P     rivate Placement					     –

3.	 Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in ` Thousands)

	T otal Liabilities		  1	 2	 4	 7	 5	 5	 1	 5	T otal Assets		  1	 2	 4	 7	 5	 5	 1	 5

	 Sources of Funds

	P aid-up Capital		  1	 4	 7	 5	 2	 5	 7	R eserves and Surplus		  7	 1	 8	 7	 2	 7	 3

	S hare Application Money					     –				D    eferred Tax Liability			   2	 2	 6	 1	 3	 0

	S ecured Loans		  3	 2	 7	 9	 3	 1	 5	U nsecured Loans					     –

	 Application of Funds

	 Net Fixed Assets 		  2	 8	 3	 0	 2	 2	 2	I nvestments		  4	 9	 2	 9	 5	 5	 6 
(Incl. P.O.P. exps)

	 Net Current Assets		  4	 4	 0	 8	 1	 9	 7	 Misc. Expenditure					     –			 

	 Accumulated Losses					     –			 

4.	 Performance of Company (Amount in ` Thousands)

	T urnover		  2	 0	 1	 3	 2	 7	 6	T otal Expenditure			   8	 1	 8	 7	 9	 2

	 Profit/Loss before Tax		  1	 1	 9	 4	 4	 8	 4	 Profit/Loss after tax			   9	 8	 9	 2	 1	 1 

	E arning Per Share (in `)					     6	 .	 7	 1	D ividend Per Share (in `)							       – 

5.	Generic  Names of Principal Products/Services of Company (as per monetary terms)

	I tem Code No. (ITC Code) 	 9	 8	 0	 1	 0	 0

	P roduct Description	 H	 y	 d	 r	 o	  	E	  l	 e	 c	 t	 r	 i	 c	  	E	  n	 e	 r	 g	 y

BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

Place	 :	Noida
Dated	 :	June 2, 2010

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

RAVI JHUNJHUNWALA 
Chairman & Managing Director

Rohini Roshanara Sood 
Director

Bharat Singh 
Company Secretary
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	 Name of the subsidiary	 AD Hydro Power Limied

Financial period ended	 March 31, 20101.	

Holding company’s interest	 88% in equity shares2.	

Shares held by the holding company 	 492,955,640 equity shares 3.	
in the subsidiary	 of ` 10 each fully paid up 
		  Amounting to ` 49,295.56 lacs

The net aggregate of profits or losses 4.	
For the current period of the subsidiary 
concerns the members of the holding company

dealt with or provided for in the accounts 	 Nil a.	
of the holding company

not dealt with or provided for in the 	 NA b.	
accounts of the holding company

The net aggregate of profits or losses 5.	
for the current period of the subsidiary 
concerns the members of the holding company

	 a.	 dealt with or provided for in the accounts 	 Nil 
	 of the holding company

	 b.	 not dealt with or provided for in the 	 NA  
	 accounts of the holding company

Statement pursuant to Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956, 
relating to subsidiary companies

Place	 :	Noida 
Dated	 :	June 2, 2010

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

RAVI JHUNJHUNWALA 
Chairman & Managing Director

Rohini Roshanara Sood 
Director

Bharat Singh 
Company Secretary



Dear Stakeholders,

2009-10 has been a year of rebound for the global economy from the 

widespread crisis amidst ongoing policy support and improving financial 

market conditions. 

India's growth-inflation dynamics are in contrast to the overall global 

scenario. The economy is recovering rapidly from the growth slowdown. 

The growth is driven by robust performance of the manufacturing sector 

on the back of government and consumer spending. IMF and other 

economic agencies have been bullish on Indian economy. IMF has 

revised the growth forecast of the Indian economy to 9.5% for 2010 from 

8.8% projected earlier, based on robust corporate profits and favourable 

financing conditions, which are likely to fuel investments. 

Sustenance of such high levels of economic growth and development is 

dependent on adequate, cost-effective and quality infrastructure. 

Accordingly the ongoing economic reforms have attached a high priority 

to the better utilization of existing infrastructure and developments in new 

infrastructures so that existing bottlenecks do not inhibit the overall 

economic growth. 

Message from the Chairman

Power Sector is a key constituent of infrastructure and closely linked to output. To deliver sustained growth rate of over 

8% and to meet the lifeline energy needs of all citizens, the power sector needs to grow at 1.8 - 2 times the GDP rate of 

growth. At >8% GDP growth rate, the required installed power generation capacity is likely to be around 306,000MW in 

2016-17 and 425,000MW in 2021-22 against installed capacity of 159,398MW (as of 31st March 2010), which 

translates into a YOY capacity addition of 30,000 MW. As compared to that, 22,000 MW has been added during last five 

years under APDRP (Accelerated Power Development & Reforms Program). Achieving these goals would require 

investments of US $ 250 Billion into the power sector; increasing the role of Hydel & Renewable Energy in the Energy 

Mix and; urgent need to develop the alternatives : both in the Fuel & Technology terms.

I am also pleased to inform that despite all unanticipated odd and adverse conditions encountered by us during the 

project implementation of Allain-Duhangan, the Allain side of the project is likely to start generating power by the 

second half of July, 2010. Further the excavation of Duhangan tunnel is also progressing well and it is expected that the 

Duhangan portion shall be operational in the second quarter of 2011. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to express our sincere gratitude to the Government of India, 

Government of Himachal Pradesh, Himachal Pradesh State Electricity Board, PTC India, all Government departments 

and agencies, investors, lenders, and bankers for their unending support. I would also take this opportunity to thank our 

employees and business associates, who despite all adverse circumstances have been the pillar of strength for the 

Company.

With  best  wishes,

Ravi Jhunjhunwala

Chairman
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PROJECT STATUS AND CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES

The commissioning of Allain Side of the Project is at an 

advanced stage and is likely to become operational by July, 

2010. On completion, this would constitute 70% of the total 

capacity of generation of electricity. During construction, in the 

past and in 2009, the Project encountered serious geological 

surprises in the excavation of tunnel and delay in statutory 

clearances for transmission line, which not only resulted into 

substantial cost overruns but also delayed the commissioning 

of the project. 

The International Finance Corporation, Washington (IFC) 

being lead lender in the project, carried out the detailed 

appraisal of the project as per the changed conditions and 

accepted an upper ceiling of the project cost of Rs 20,213 

Million for the purposes of financing. All other participating 

lenders in the project also extended their full support to the 

project, recognizing the ground realities being faced by the 

company. 

For the Duhangan Side of the Project, the Directors wish to 

inform that the excavation work at the Duhangan side is in 

progress and is expected to be completed by December, 2010. 

The work on Transmission Line is going on at a fast pace, and 

is likely to be completed by July/August, 2010. Work on Plan B 

of Transmission Line is also progressing well, and is likely to be 

completed by end June, 2010.

Annual Report 2009-2010

Directors’ Report

India is one of the fastest growing economies of the world and 

has been recording high GDP growth over the last few years. 

Economists predict that the Indian economy will continue to 

maintain the same tempo in future also, which will lead to 

further increase in demand for electricity due to the fact that the 

growth in GDP and Power consumption are positively 

correlated, i.e., both move in the same direction.

India’s power generation capacity increased to 1,59,398 MW 

as on 31st March 2010 as compared to 1,47,965 MW as on 

31st March 2009, an increase of 7.72%. The total energy 

available increased from 6,89,021 MUs ( 2008-09) to 7,46,493 

MUs (2009-10 ), an increase of 8.34%. 

As per Planning Commission estimates, total electricity 

requirement in the country at eight per cent GDP growth is 

projected to cross 1,000 BU by 2011-12 and further rise to 

2,118 BU by 2021-22. The Planning Commission has 

estimated that for an energy requirement of 1,097 BU in 2011-

12 (at eight per cent GDP growth), installed capacity has to be 

2,20,000 MW. At the same GDP growth rate, total installed 

capacity is required to be 306,000 Mw and 425,000 MW in 

2016-17 and 2021-22 respectively. Over the last decade, 

India’s electricity generation has surged from 480.7 BU in 

1999-00 to 771.17 BU in 2009-10. However, there still exists a 

wide gap between demand for power and actual supply and 

this translates into huge opportunity for the power sector 

companies to capitalize on.

Increase in power capacity and economic growth over the 

years have led to rise in per capita consumption of electricity in 

India from 566.7 KWh in 2002-03 to 704.2 KWh in 2007-08, 

growing at a CAGR of 3.69 per cent. However, India’s 
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TO THE MEMBERS

AD HYDRO POWER LIMITED

PROJECT EXPENSES

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their 

Seventh Annual Report along with the audited statement of 

accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2010 

together with the Auditors' Report thereon.

The Company has not yet started its commercial activities and 

therefore no Profit and Loss Account has been prepared and 

the expenditure incurred has been shown under Schedule -6 

under the head “Project & Pre-operative Expenses (Pending 

Allocation)” to the Balance Sheet.

During the financial year ending 31st March, 2010, the 

following expenditure has been incurred on the project as per 

the details given below:

(Amount in ` Million)

Fixed Assets ( Gross ) 934.624

Capital Work in Progress 11,970.644

Preoperative Expenses 5,648.625

Net Current Assets (841.863)

Miscellaneous 20.018

TOTAL 17,732.048

PARTICULARS AMOUNT

The Company will, in all likelihood, be commencing 

commercial generation of electricity by end June, 2010 or early 

July, 2010. 

The revised Project Cost Ceiling for financing purposes as 

approved by The International Finance Corporation, 

Washington now stands at Rs 20,213 Million and to be 

financed as follows;-

(` in Million)

Equity Malana Power Company Ltd (88%)     4,928

International Finance Corporation, (12%) 672

 Total 5,600

Debt  Senior IFC, IDBI and other commercial banks 9,975

Debt –Subordinate Malana Power Company Ltd 4638

 Total 20,213

As on 31st March 2010, an amount of ̀  17,732.048 million has already been 

incurred on the project with the following means of finance:

 (` in Million)

1 Equity contribution from Malana Power Co. Ltd 4,929.556

2 Equity contribution from IFC, W 671.972

3 Senior Debt from International Finance Corporation 2,150.000

4 Senior Debt from Local Lenders 

(IDBI, PNB, Axis Bank, PSB & OBC) 6,230.000

5 Debt from Holding Company 

(Malana Power Company Ltd.) 3,750.520

 Total 17,732.048

Energy is an essential part of the overall development of the 

country. 

STATUS OF FINANCING

THE FUTURE OUTLOOK-INDIAN POWER SECTOR 
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its position in the Indian power sector. The volume of traded 

power grew by 37 per cent during 2009-10 as compared to the 

previous year. According to Central Electricity Regulatory 

Commission (CERC) estimates, the power exchanges and 

trading licensees transacted short term power worth 

Rs.192.17 billion in 2009.

A notable recent development has been the emergence of 

industrial consumers for power procurement through 

exchanges. During 2009, over 20 industries procured a total of 

154.4 million units (MUs) through the power exchange (IEX). 

For merchant plants, the tariffs are governed by supply and 

demand in the market. The current demand-supply gap, which 

is expected to continue for at least next 10 years , provides not 

only investment opportunities in the power sector but will also 

boost the sale of power in the spot market/ on short term 

contract basis. 

During the year under review, an allotment of 62,800,000 

equity shares was made at par to Malana Power Company 

Limited, and 37,352,841 equity shares were allotted at par to 

IFC, Washington.

The total paid up equity capital of the Company stands at 

`  5,601 million as on the date of this report. 

Your Company has adopted and implemented Environmental 

Management Plan as per the norms of IFC, Washington to 

address various environmental and social issues. It also 

includes Public consultation and disclosure plan through mode 

of local community participation, consultation, and dialogues. 

SHARE CAPITAL 

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY

consumption is still one of the lowest in the world with the global 

average being around 2,701 KWh. 

With the Indian Economy growing at more than 7 to 8 percent 

annually, the demand for power has been outstripping supply. 

India continues to experience acute shortages in energy 

supply (11.7%) and peak load capacity (13.3%). Both energy 

demand and peak demand are expected to grow at between 7-

8% up to 2017 and at 6-7% thereafter. 

In order to cater to its growing requirement of electricity, India 

has to reduce its dependency on fossil fuels by looking at other 

alternatives of energy which are both cost effective and cleaner 

in nature. Hydro Power, besides supplementing demand for 

electricity, is also one of the better available choices for 

meeting peak demand. As of March 2009 the total installed 

capacity of Hydro Power in India was about 37,000 MW. 

However, almost 70% of the exploitable hydro power capacity 

of 1,48,701 MW still remains to be developed. As per Hydro 

Power Policy 2008, the Government of India plans to tap the 

unexploited capacity by end of 14th Five year plan ( 2022-23 to 

2026-27), which means that Hydro Power will see a surge in 

investment during the next 15 years.

Of late, the Government of India has taken many initiatives 

starting from the enactment of Electricity Act 2003, introduction 

of Open Access , setting up of Regulatory Commissions at the 

Centre and States, unbundling of state electricity boards, 

modification of mega power policy, formulation of Competitive 

Bidding Tariff, facilitation of trading of surplus/merchant 

capacity and setting up of Power Exchanges. All these 

initiatives have had positive results and attracted more 

investment in the power sector.

The short term power market has been gradually consolidating 

The Directors have pleasure in informing the members that 

during the year, IFC has chosen ADHPL as one of the eight 

projects across the globe for efforts made towards social 

causes and in recognition IFC has proposed visit of Blackstone 

Mission (consultant to IFC) in the last week of June 2010

During the year under review, there were a total of 15 total 

reported injuries. One unfortunate fatality occurred on the 

transmission line, there were 13 Lost Time Injuries (LTI) and 1 

Medical Treatment Injury (MTI) at the site. A very detailed 

analysis and reporting has been prepared on the cause of the 

accident and eventually the Fatality. Based on the findings; 

trainings, tool box discussions, Job safety analysis have been 

framed and are being practiced so that the chances of such 

accidents are minimized. 

We should also mention about the TRI’s and state that the HSE 

focus put in place has brought this down from 42 reported 

injuries and 10 fatalities in 2008-09.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it conducts its 

business in accordance with ethical, professional and legal 

standards. 

As a constructive partner in the communities in which it 

operates, your company has been proactive towards its social 

responsibility. Some of the major activities undertaken during 

the year by the company towards fulfilling its social 

responsibility objectives are: .

Completion of work on:

– P.C.C. playground at Govt. Middle School, Aleo;

– C/O Double Storey building for G.S., Aleo;

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

– Work of Slogan writing for Govt. High School, Prini;

– Stadium for Jamdagni Temple at Prini, RD 2000 Allain 

Road;

– Govt. Primary School at Prini (Double Storey);

– Shifting and laying of water supply line from Prini to Chalet 

Village;

– Modification and placing of dustbins.

– The Company has established and is maintaining solid 

waste management system at the site.

– For providing education to the children of workers at site, a 

creche has been operational.

– For ensuring road safety in the site area, the Company has 

made an expenditure of Rs 6.55 million for the 

construction of Parapets along Project roads that are 

nearing completion. Further, at both Allain and Duhangan 

sites, one additional road barrier has been set up to ensure 

road safety.

– The Company has one primary health centre at Prini, 

having well experienced medical officer and other 

paramedical staff. Project has also two first aid centers at 

Hamta Potato farm and Duhangan weir site with trained 

First Aiders.

– Primary health centre at Prini is having all basic facilities 

for emergency handling including well equipped 

diagnostic laboratory.

– Weekly health check up of employees is being carried out 

every Friday on voluntary basis. 

Annual Report 2009-2010
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– Medicines are provided free of cost to the laboures and the 

villagers residing in the project affected area.

– The Company has well equipped 3 ambulances having 

Oxygen cylinders, IV fluid and first aid boxes at both the 

sites. 

– Health department of the Company is also involved in the 

activities like, Pulse Polio Immunization programme, STD/ 

HIV–AIDS awareness programme, universal  

immunization programme for children & antenatal women 

etc.

– Bio medical waste is managed according to WHO 

guidelines and sent to Municipal Corporation, Kullu for 

further handling after segregation at health centre.

– A Community hall at Sethan has been completed and 

inaugurated .

– Provision of drinking water facility for Sethan village has 

been completed.

– Provision of Irrigation water for Sethan village is under 

progress and likely to be completed by end of September.

– Construction of Buddhist Gompa temple in Prini is under 

progress.

– Construction of 2nd storey of Govt. school building at Aleo 

has been completed

– First Aid Training of laborers and Engineer/ Supervisors 

has been conducted by External agency.

– In house training for EHS&S personnel has been started 

on regular basis during EHS&S departmental meeting 

held every week on Wednesday.

– Fire fighting & Fire prevention training for site staff, 

security personnel & Contractors Engineer has been 

imparted by third party. 

– A hoarding for Environment Awareness installed at Manali 

tourist town.

– Equipments of worth 30 Lacs (Smoke meter for Petrol & 

Diesel, BOD Incubator, HVS, Noise meter) have been 

provided to HP State Pollution Control Board on kind basis 

for Environmental monitoring & Pollution Control 

measures.

– Construction of Jamdagani Rishi temple at Jagatsukh is 

nearing completion.

– Construction of Panchayat Bhavan at Jagatsukh is 

completed.

– “Job Safety Analysis”, sling safety, training for Supervisors 

and above level was conducted at various Project site 

locations.

– Training regarding Frost bite and its prevention has been 

given by AD Hydro health department at all the project 

sites.

– Drivers training is being done on regular interval. 

– Award of “Renewal of Consent to Establish under Water 

(Prevention & Control of pollution) Act, 1974 and Air 

(Prevention & Control of pollution) Act, 1981” up to March 

31, 2010 from H.P. State pollution Control Board vide 

letter number HPSPCB (20)/A.D. HEP–Kullu / 

09–17036–38 which was due since 2005. 

– All the previous Show cause notices issued under Water 

(Prevention & Control of pollution) Act, 1974 and Air 

(Prevention & Control of pollution) Act, 1981 have been 

revoked by Himachal Pradesh State Pollution Control 

Board vide letter number HPSPCB (20) / Allain Duhangan 

HEP – Kullu /09–13010–11.

– National Safety Day was celebrated on March 4, 2010 with 

big fervour.

Your Company’s Human Resources Development strategy 

focuses on building the competence, commitment and 

motivation of employees. The Company recognizes serious 

scarcity of trained expert personnel in power sector. With the 

expansion of the power market, there is growing requirement 

for not just qualified engineers, but also for finance, marketing, 

commercial, IT and HR personnel. 

The Company recognizes human resources as a key 

component for facilitating organization growth and regularly 

invests in augmenting its human resources with latest tools, 

equipments and techniques through focused and structured 

become an attractive employer in the industry. 

The Company is also committed to provide a zero injury 

workplace to its employees and workers all across its units, 

security of employees is one of the prime concerns of the 

Management. Employees are adequately covered under 

various insurance policies against risk of health and life 

disasters. The company continues to empower its employees 

to achieve business successes. Accordingly suitable changes 

at Site Management level have also been made.

As the construction work is under progress, without any 

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT

DIVIDEND & OTHER APPROPRIATION

operation, no dividends are proposed to be declared during the 

year under operation.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Your Company has an adequate internal control procedure 

commensurate with the nature of its business and size of its 

operations. Internal Audit is conducted at regular interval. The 

internal control system in all areas of operations, regularly 

checked by both external and internal auditors that have 

access to all records and information. The Company also 

maintains a system of internal control designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the effectiveness and 

efficiency of operations, the adequacy of safeguards for 

assets, the reliability of financial control and compliance with 

applicable laws and regulations. The Company is continuously 

upgrading these systems in line with the best available 

practices. Audit Committee meetings are held where these 

reports and variance analysis are discussed and action taken. 

Operational reports are tabled at the Board Meetings after 

discussions at Audit Committee Meetings.

INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal Audit is an independent, objective and assurance 

function conscientious for evaluating and improving the 

effectiveness of risk management, Control, and governance 

processes. The function prepares annual audit plans based on 

risk management and conducts extensive reviews covering 

financial, operational and compliance controls and risk 

mitigation. Areas requiring specialized knowledge are 

reviewed in partnership with external experts. 
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– Medicines are provided free of cost to the laboures and the 

villagers residing in the project affected area.
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etc.
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further handling after segregation at health centre.
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been completed.

– Provision of Irrigation water for Sethan village is under 
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on regular basis during EHS&S departmental meeting 

held every week on Wednesday.
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imparted by third party. 
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measures.
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(Prevention & Control of pollution) Act, 1981” up to March 
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letter number HPSPCB (20)/A.D. HEP–Kullu / 

09–17036–38 which was due since 2005. 

– All the previous Show cause notices issued under Water 

(Prevention & Control of pollution) Act, 1974 and Air 

(Prevention & Control of pollution) Act, 1981 have been 

revoked by Himachal Pradesh State Pollution Control 

Board vide letter number HPSPCB (20) / Allain Duhangan 

HEP – Kullu /09–13010–11.

– National Safety Day was celebrated on March 4, 2010 with 

big fervour.

Your Company’s Human Resources Development strategy 

focuses on building the competence, commitment and 

motivation of employees. The Company recognizes serious 

scarcity of trained expert personnel in power sector. With the 

expansion of the power market, there is growing requirement 

for not just qualified engineers, but also for finance, marketing, 

commercial, IT and HR personnel. 

The Company recognizes human resources as a key 

component for facilitating organization growth and regularly 

invests in augmenting its human resources with latest tools, 

equipments and techniques through focused and structured 

become an attractive employer in the industry. 

The Company is also committed to provide a zero injury 

workplace to its employees and workers all across its units, 

security of employees is one of the prime concerns of the 

Management. Employees are adequately covered under 

various insurance policies against risk of health and life 

disasters. The company continues to empower its employees 

to achieve business successes. Accordingly suitable changes 

at Site Management level have also been made.

As the construction work is under progress, without any 

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT

DIVIDEND & OTHER APPROPRIATION

operation, no dividends are proposed to be declared during the 

year under operation.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Your Company has an adequate internal control procedure 

commensurate with the nature of its business and size of its 

operations. Internal Audit is conducted at regular interval. The 

internal control system in all areas of operations, regularly 

checked by both external and internal auditors that have 

access to all records and information. The Company also 

maintains a system of internal control designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the effectiveness and 

efficiency of operations, the adequacy of safeguards for 

assets, the reliability of financial control and compliance with 

applicable laws and regulations. The Company is continuously 

upgrading these systems in line with the best available 

practices. Audit Committee meetings are held where these 

reports and variance analysis are discussed and action taken. 

Operational reports are tabled at the Board Meetings after 

discussions at Audit Committee Meetings.

INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal Audit is an independent, objective and assurance 

function conscientious for evaluating and improving the 

effectiveness of risk management, Control, and governance 

processes. The function prepares annual audit plans based on 

risk management and conducts extensive reviews covering 

financial, operational and compliance controls and risk 

mitigation. Areas requiring specialized knowledge are 

reviewed in partnership with external experts. 
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Internal audit plans cover matters identified in risk 

management assessments as well as issues highlighted by the 

Board, the audit committee and senior management. Quarterly 

Internal audit reports are submitted along with the 

management’s response to the Audit Committee. The Audit 

Committee monitors performance of Internal Audit on a 

periodic basis through review of the internal audit plans, audit 

findings & swiftness of issue resolution through follow ups. 

Information of employees in accordance with the provisions of 

Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the 

Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975, is given in 

Annexure-II to the Directors’ Report.

As required under Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies 

(Amendment) Act, 2000, the Directors of your Company state 

hereunder:- 

i) That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the 

applicable accounting standards had been followed along 

with proper explanation relating to material departures;

ii) that the accounting policies have been selected and 

applied consistently and made judgments and estimates 

that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of 

the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company 

for the financial year 2009-10;

iii) that the proper and sufficient care has been taken for the 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting fraud and other irregularities; and

iv) that the annual accounts have been prepared on going 

concern basis.

Mr. Ravi Jhunjhunwala and Mr. Øistein Andresen retire by 

rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being 

eligible, offer themselves for reappointment there at. 

Mr. R. P. Goel was appointed as Whole Time Director with 

effect from 29th November 2009 for a period of two years.

During the year the Company met thrice to review Company’s 

financial results, internal control systems, risk management 

policies and internal audit reports. The audit committee of the 

Company comprises of three members. 

The Company has received consent letter from S.R. Batliboi & 

Co., Chartered Accountants under section 224(1)(b) of the 

Companies Act, 1956 who, being eligible have shown their 

willingness for appointment as statutory auditors of the 

Company. The Board recommends the re-appointment of 

M/s S.R. Batliboi & Co., Chartered Accountants as Statutory 

Auditors of the Company. 

The observations made by the Auditors with reference to the 

Notes to the Accounts for the year under report are self-

explanatory and require no further comments. 

DIRECTORS 

AUDIT COMMITTEE

AUDITORS 

AUDITORS’ REMARKS
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PUBLIC DEPOSITS

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the Public 

during the year under report. Therefore, provisions of Section 

58A are not applicable.

Information required to be disclosed under Section 217 (1)(e) 

of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies (Disclosure 

of Particulars in the report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 

has been given in the Annexure I forming part of this Report.

Your Company follows practices of good Corporate 

Governance with strong belief that corporate governance is a 

key element in improving efficiency and growth as well as 

enhancing investor confidence.

The majority of the Board comprises of Non-Executive 

Directors who impart balance to the Board processes by 

bringing an independent judgment to bear on issues of 

strategy, performance, resources, standards of Company 

conduct, etc. The audit committee of the board meets regularly 

and provides assurance to the Board on the adequacy of 

internal control systems and financial systems. The Corporate 

governance policy followed by the company represents the 

value framework, the ethical framework and the moral 

framework under which business decisions are taken.

APPRECIATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors are pleased to place on record their appreciation for 

the continued support received from the lenders of the Company 

namely IFC, IDBI, PSB, OBC, AXIS Bank, PNB, J & K Bank and 

United Bank of India. The Directors also acknowledge the 

assistance and continued support provided by the Ministry of 

Power, Government of India, Government of Himachal Pradesh, 

Himachal Pradesh State Electricity Board, Commercial Banks and 

other Government Departments / Bodies / Authorities and looks 

forward to their continued support and cooperation in the coming 

years as well. 

The Board would also like to express great appreciation for the 

commitment and contribution of its employees at all levels. Last but 

not least, the Company thanks its shareholders for their unstinted 

support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Noida Ravi Jhunjhunwala

Date: June 02, 2010 Chairman
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Internal audit plans cover matters identified in risk 

management assessments as well as issues highlighted by the 

Board, the audit committee and senior management. Quarterly 

Internal audit reports are submitted along with the 

management’s response to the Audit Committee. The Audit 

Committee monitors performance of Internal Audit on a 

periodic basis through review of the internal audit plans, audit 

findings & swiftness of issue resolution through follow ups. 

Information of employees in accordance with the provisions of 

Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the 

Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975, is given in 

Annexure-II to the Directors’ Report.

As required under Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies 

(Amendment) Act, 2000, the Directors of your Company state 

hereunder:- 

i) That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the 

applicable accounting standards had been followed along 

with proper explanation relating to material departures;

ii) that the accounting policies have been selected and 

applied consistently and made judgments and estimates 

that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of 

the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company 

for the financial year 2009-10;

iii) that the proper and sufficient care has been taken for the 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting fraud and other irregularities; and

iv) that the annual accounts have been prepared on going 

concern basis.

Mr. Ravi Jhunjhunwala and Mr. Øistein Andresen retire by 

rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being 

eligible, offer themselves for reappointment there at. 

Mr. R. P. Goel was appointed as Whole Time Director with 

effect from 29th November 2009 for a period of two years.

During the year the Company met thrice to review Company’s 

financial results, internal control systems, risk management 

policies and internal audit reports. The audit committee of the 

Company comprises of three members. 

The Company has received consent letter from S.R. Batliboi & 

Co., Chartered Accountants under section 224(1)(b) of the 

Companies Act, 1956 who, being eligible have shown their 

willingness for appointment as statutory auditors of the 

Company. The Board recommends the re-appointment of 

M/s S.R. Batliboi & Co., Chartered Accountants as Statutory 

Auditors of the Company. 

The observations made by the Auditors with reference to the 

Notes to the Accounts for the year under report are self-

explanatory and require no further comments. 
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PUBLIC DEPOSITS

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the Public 

during the year under report. Therefore, provisions of Section 

58A are not applicable.

Information required to be disclosed under Section 217 (1)(e) 

of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies (Disclosure 

of Particulars in the report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 

has been given in the Annexure I forming part of this Report.

Your Company follows practices of good Corporate 

Governance with strong belief that corporate governance is a 

key element in improving efficiency and growth as well as 

enhancing investor confidence.

The majority of the Board comprises of Non-Executive 

Directors who impart balance to the Board processes by 

bringing an independent judgment to bear on issues of 

strategy, performance, resources, standards of Company 

conduct, etc. The audit committee of the board meets regularly 

and provides assurance to the Board on the adequacy of 

internal control systems and financial systems. The Corporate 

governance policy followed by the company represents the 

value framework, the ethical framework and the moral 

framework under which business decisions are taken.

APPRECIATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors are pleased to place on record their appreciation for 

the continued support received from the lenders of the Company 

namely IFC, IDBI, PSB, OBC, AXIS Bank, PNB, J & K Bank and 

United Bank of India. The Directors also acknowledge the 

assistance and continued support provided by the Ministry of 

Power, Government of India, Government of Himachal Pradesh, 

Himachal Pradesh State Electricity Board, Commercial Banks and 

other Government Departments / Bodies / Authorities and looks 

forward to their continued support and cooperation in the coming 

years as well. 

The Board would also like to express great appreciation for the 

commitment and contribution of its employees at all levels. Last but 

not least, the Company thanks its shareholders for their unstinted 

support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Noida Ravi Jhunjhunwala

Date: June 02, 2010 Chairman
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ANNEXURE - I TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS PURSUANT TO THE COMPANIES 

( DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS IN THE REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES,1988

1. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY -NIL

2. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION - NIL

A. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ( R & D ) -NIL

B. TECHNOLOGICAL ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION-NIL

C. EXPORTS & FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

(` in Million)

I. Foreign Exchange Outgo

Engineering Fee and Consultancy charges 64.609 42.321

Legal and Professional charges 117.565 –

Travelling 0.254 0.382

Financial charges 0.969 –

Capital and Project Equipments 101.743 122.382

Total 285.140 165.085

PARTICULARS 2009-10 2008-09

ANNEXURE-II TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT

Information pursuant to Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) 
Rules, 1975 and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31st March, 2010 are given hereunder:

Mr. O. P. Ajmera President (Finance) and CFO 3.572 C.A., C.S. 48 yrs. 17-03-1987

Name Designation Remuneration Qualification Age Date of 
(` in  Million) Commencement 

of Employment
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Auditors' Report

To 

The Members of AD Hydro Power Limited

1.	 We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of AD 
Hydro Power Limited (‘the Company’) as at March 
31, 2010 and the Cash Flow Statement for the year 
ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s 
management.  Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit.

2.	 We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in India.  
Those Standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2003 (as amended) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of 
Section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose 
in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

4.	 Further to our comments in the Annexure referred 
to above, we report that:

	 i.	 We have obtained all the information and 
explanations, which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of 
our audit;

	 ii.	I n our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as appears from our examination of those 
books;

	 iii.	 The balance sheet and cash flow statement 
dealt with by this report are in agreement with 
the books of account;

	 iv.	 In our opinion, the balance sheet and cash flow 
statement dealt with by this report comply with 
the accounting standards referred to in sub-
section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies 
Act, 1956.

	 v.	O n the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors, as on March 31, 
2010, and taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, we report that none of the directors 
is disqualified as on March 31, 2010 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of clause 
(g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the 
Companies Act, 1956.

	 vi.	I n our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, 
the said accounts give the information required 
by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India;

		  a)	 in the case of the balance sheet, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2010; 

		  b)	 in the case of cash flow statement, of 
the cash flows for the year ended on that 
date.

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Firm registration number: 301003E
Chartered Accountants

per Raj Agrawal
Partner 
Membership No.: 82028

Place: Gurgaon
Date: June 2, 2010
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Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of 
even date

Re: AD Hydro Power Limited ('the Company')

(i)	 (a)	T he Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets.  

	 (b)	 Fixed assets have been physically verified 
by the management during the year and no 
material discrepancies were identified on 
such verification.

	 (c)	 There was no substantial disposal of fixed 
assets during the year. 

(ii)	 (a)	T he management has conducted physical 
verification of inventory at reasonable 
intervals during the year.

	 (b)	 The procedures of physical verification of 
inventory followed by the management are 
reasonable and adequate in relation to the 
size of the Company and the nature of its 
business. In respect of material lying with 
third parties, the management has a process 
of confirmations and reconciliations with the 
third parties during the year. 

	 (c)	T he Company is maintaining proper records 
of inventory and no material discrepancies 
were noticed on physical verification.

(iii)	 (a)	 As informed, the Company has not granted 
any loans, secured or unsecured to 
companies, firms or other parties covered 
in the register maintained under section 301 
of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, 
provisions of clauses 4(iii) (a), (b), (c) and (d) 
of the Companies (Auditor’s Report ) Order, 
2003 (as amended) are not applicable to the 
Company. 

	 (e)	T he Company has taken loan from one 
company covered in the register maintained 
under section 301 of the Companies Act, 
1956. The maximum amount involved during 
the year was Rs. 4,262,368 thousand and the 
year-end balance of loan taken from such 
company was Rs.3,750,520 thousand.

	 (f)	I n our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the rate of 
interest and other terms and conditions for 
such loan are not prima facie prejudicial to 
the interest of the Company.

	 (g)	 As informed to us and as per the terms of 
the Subordination Loan agreement with the 
lenders, the loan taken and interest thereon is 
re-payable after the payment is made to outside 
lenders and once the project commences 
commercial operations. Accordingly,  the 
lenders  have  not demanded repayment of 
any such loan and interest thereon during the 
year and thus, there has been no default on 
the part of the Company. 

(iv)	I n our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, there is an adequate 
internal control system commensurate with the size 
of the Company and the nature of its business, 
for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets 
and for the sale of scrap. During the course of 
our audit, no major weakness has been noticed 
in the internal control system in respect of these 
areas. Since the Company has not yet commenced 
commercial production, the Company has not sold 
any services. During the course of our audit, we 
have not observed any continuing failure to correct 
major weakness in internal control system of the 
company.

 (v)	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations 
provided by the management, we are of the 
opinion that the particulars of contracts or 
arrangements referred to in section 301 of the 
Companies Act, 1956 that need to be entered 
into the register maintained under section 301 
have been so entered.

	 (b)	I n our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the transactions 
made in pursuance of such contracts or 
arrangements exceeding the value of Rupees 
five lakhs have been entered into during the 
financial year at prices which are reasonable 
having regard to the prevailing market prices 
at the relevant time.

 (vi) 	T he Company has not accepted any deposits from 
the public.

 (vii)	I n our opinion, the Company has an internal audit 
system commensurate with the size and nature of 
its business.

 (viii) 	The Company is in construction phase and is yet to 
commence operations. Accordingly, the provisions 
of clause 4(viii) of the Companies (Auditor’s report) 
Order 2003 (as amended) are not applicable to the 
Company.

(ix)	 (a)	U ndisputed statutory dues including provident 
fund, investor education and protection   fund, 
income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service 
tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess have 
generally been regularly deposited with the 
appropriate authorities though there has been 
delay in one case of dues related to income 
tax. The provisions relating to employees’ 
state insurance are not applicable to the 
Company.

		  Further, since the Central Governent 
has till date not prescribed the amount of 
cess payable under section 441 A of the 
Companies Act,1956, we are not in a position 
to comment upon the regularity  or otherwise 
of the company in depositing the same.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of provident fund, investor education 



51

and protection fund, income-tax, wealth-tax, 
service tax, sales-tax, customs duty, excise 
duty, cess and other undisputed statutory 
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a 
period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable.

	 (c)	 According to the information and explanation 
given to us, there are no dues of income tax, 
sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, customs 
duty, excise duty and cess which have not 
been deposited on account of any dispute.

(x) 	 As the Company is yet to commence commercial 
operations as on March 31, 2010, the Profit & 
Loss Account has not been prepared. Hence, we 
are not required to comment on whether or not the 
accumulated losses at the end of financial year is 
fifty percent or more of its net worth and whether 
it has incurred cash losses in the current and 
immediately preceding financial year.

 (xi) 	 Based on our audit procedures and as per 
the information and explanations given by the 
management, we are of the opinion that the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to 
a financial institution or bank. The Company has no 
outstanding dues in respect of debenture holders. 

(xii) 	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on the documents      and records 
produced to us, the Company has not granted 
loans and advances on the basis of security by 
way of pledge of shares, debentures and other 
securities.

(xiii) 	I n our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or 
a nidhi / mutual benefit fund / society. Therefore, 
the provisions of clause 4(xiii) of the Companies 
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) are 
not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) 	In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in 
or trading in shares, securities, debentures and 
other investments. Accordingly, the provisions of 
clause 4(xiv) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2003 (as amended) are not applicable to the 
Company.

(xv) 	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has not given any guarantee 
for loans taken by others from bank or financial 
institutions.

 (xvi) 	Based on information and explanations given to us 
by the management, term loans were applied for 
the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(xvii) 	According to the information and explanations given 
to us and on an overall examination of the Balance 
Sheet and Cash Flow Statement of the Company, 
we report that no funds raised on short-term basis 
have been used for long-term investment. 

 (xviii) The Company has made preferential allotment 
of shares to parties and companies covered in 
the register maintained under section 301 of the 
Companies Act, 1956. In our opinion, the price at 
which shares have been issued is not prejudicial 
to the interest of the Company.

(xix) 	The Company did not have any outstanding 
debentures during the the year.

(xx)	D uring the year under review, the Company has 
not raised  money through public issues: hence, 
clause 4 (xx) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2003 (as amended) is not applicable to the 
Company.

(xxi)	 Based upon the audit procedures performed for 
the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of 
the financial statements and as per the information 
and  explanations given by the management, we 
report that no fraud on or by the Company has been 
noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Firm registration number: 301003E
Chartered Accountants

per Raj Agrawal
Partner 
Membership No.: 82028

Place	:	Gurgaon
Date	 :	June 2, 2010
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2010

As per our report of even date
For S. R. Batliboi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 301003E

per Raj Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 82028

Place	 :	Gurgaon 
Dated	 :	June 2, 2010

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

RAVI JHUNJHUNWALA 
Director

Rohini Roshanara Sood 
Director

Sandeep Chandna 
Company Secretary

Place : Noida
Date : June 2, 2010

(` ’000)
Schedules As at  

March 31, 2010
As at  

March 31, 2009
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders' Funds
Share capital 1  5,601,528  4,600,000 
Share application money (pending allotment)   –  628,000 

 5,601,528  5,228,000 
Loan funds 
Secured loans 2  8,380,000  7,140,000 
Unsecured loans 3  3,750,520  1,360,756 

 12,130,520  8,500,756 
TOTAL  17,732,048  13,728,756 
APPLICATION OF FUNDS   
Fixed Assets  
Gross block 4  934,624  776,500 
Less : Accumulated depreciation  376,400  185,722 
Net block  558,224  590,778 
Capital work-in-progress including capital 
advances 

5  11,970,645  9,984,140 

Project and pre-operative expenses  
(pending allocation)

6  6,025,024  4,004,558 

 18,553,893  14,579,476 
Current Assets, Loans and Advances  
Inventories 7  177,321  220,024 
Cash and bank balances 8  499,766  69,303 
Other current assets 9  188  158 
Loans and advances 10  23,329  36,559 

 700,604  326,044 
Less: Current Liabilities and Provisions   
Current liabilities 11  1,523,854  1,180,289 
Provisions 12  18,613  16,493 

 1,542,467  1,196,782 
Net Current Assets  (841,863)  (870,738)
Miscellaneous Expenditure 
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)

13  20,018  20,018 

TOTAL  17,732,048  13,728,756 
Notes to accounts 14 

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.
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SCHEDULES

Schedule 1: Share Capital

(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

Authorised

700,000,000 (Previous year 700,000,000)  
equity shares of ` 10 each 

 7,000,000  7,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid up

560,152,841 (Previous year 460,000,000)  
equity shares of ` 10 each 

 5,601,528  4,600,000 

492,955,640 (Previous year 430,155,640) equity shares are 
held by Malana Power Company Limited, the Holding Company 
along with its nominees.

 5,601,528  4,600,000 

Schedule 2: Secured Loans

(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

Rupee term loans

– From banks  6,230,000  5,290,000 

– From an institution  2,150,000  1,150,000 

Short term loans

– From others  –  700,000 

 8,380,000  7,140,000 

Note:

1.	 Term loans from banks and institutions are secured by way of a first mortgage/charge on all immovable properties 
wherever situated, both present and future, and hypothecation of all movable assets, rights, etc., present and 
future, of the Company, on pari passu basis. Further, the holding company, Malana Power Company Limited, 
has provided corporate guarantee and has also pledged its share holding in the Company.

2. 	R upee term loan from an institution represents loan from  IFC, Washington, a minority shareholder.
3.	 Loans include amounts payable within one year ` 329,485 thousand (previous year ` 700,000 thousand)

Schedule 3: Unsecured Loans

(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

Long Term loan

– From Holding Company  3,750,520  1,360,756 

 3,750,520  1,360,756 

Loans include amounts payable within one year ` Nil (previous year ` Nil)
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SCHEDULE - 4 : FIXED ASSETS 	
	 (` ’000)

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

Particulars As at
April 1, 

2009

Additions Deduction As at
March 31, 

2010

As at
April 1, 

2009

For the 
year

Deletion As at
March 31, 

2010

As at
March 31, 

2010

As at
March 31, 

2009

Buildings  252,963  2,525  –  255,488  8,183  5,070  –  13,253  242,235  244,780 

Project equipments  443,533  149,154  –  592,687  146,846  177,443  –  324,289  268,398  296,688 

Electrical installation  25,852  4,952  –  30,804  4,082  1,559  –  5,641  25,163  21,769 

Furniture & fixtures  19,088  678  –  19,766  7,945  2,352  –  10,297  9,469  11,143 

Computers  10,920  74  –  10,994  7,693  1,301  –  8,994  2,000  3,227 

Office equipments  7,223  699  3  7,919  2,659  725  3  3,381  4,538  4,564 

Vehicles  16,921  45  –  16,966  8,314  2,231  –  10,545  6,421  8,607 

Total  776,500  158,127  3  934,624  185,722  190,681  3  376,400  558,224  590,778 

Previous Year  381,883  394,923  306  776,500  151,140  34,693  111  185,722  590,778  230,743 

SCHEDULE – 5 : CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
(` ’000)

Particulars As at
April 1, 2009

Additions During 
The Year (Net)

As at
March 31, 2010

Land – freehold  
(Refer note no. 5(a) & (b) of schedule 14 )

 303,745  3,046  306,791 

Roads  1,294,720  82,894  1,377,614 

Buildings  14,586  5,713  20,299 

Head race tunnel  1,576,763  667,980  2,244,743 

Pressure shaft/ penstock  512,027  157,319  669,346 

Upstream/ barrage  1,238,334  8,658  1,246,992 

Power house  966,080  20,938  987,018 

Switch Yard– Mechanical  166,561  28,529  195,090 

Switch Yard Civil  93,422  1,457  94,879 

Construction power  41,471  2,138  43,609 

Transmission line

– R ight to use  239,487  142,026  381,513 

– E xpenditure on forest land  
(Refer Note no 5 (c) of Schedule 14)

 270,803  233,847  504,650 

– O thers  1,321,331  321,187  1,642,518 

Turbine & Generators  934,303  289,725  1,224,028 

Gates  77,143  21,362  98,505 

Valves  18,785  10,075  28,860 

Power Cables  75,962  28,966  104,928 

Power Transformer  175,280  39,059  214,339 

Equipments under installation  4,787  629  5,416 

Electro & mechanical auxilliary services  43,507  31,147  74,654 

EOT Crane  22,570  –  22,570 

Capital stocks  298,525  (67,570)  230,955 

–  includes stocks lying with third parties ` 204,345 
thousand (Previous year ` 251,027thousand)

Capital advances  293,948  (42,620)  251,328 

Total  9,984,140  1,986,505  11,970,645 



55

Schedule 6: Project and Pre-operative expenses (pending allocation)

(` ’000)
Particulars As at

April 1, 2009
Additions During 

The Year
As at

March 31, 2010
Personnel Expenses
Salaries , wages and bonus  363,916  135,633  499,549 
Contribution to provident funds  22,177  5,839  28,016 
Contribution to superannuation funds  3,762  1,059  4,821 
Gratuity expenses  4,124  1,112  5,236 
Long term compensated absence  1,121  3,010  4,131 
Workmen and staff welfare expenses  29,140  8,705  37,845 

 424,240  155,358  579,598 
Administrative and other expenses
Rent   43,841  13,430  57,271 
Rates & taxes  251  95  346 
Insurance  95,651  42,729  138,380 
Repairs and maintenance       
 – Plant and machinery  25,095  5,790  30,885 
 – Civil works  1,812  –    1,812 
 – Buildings  3,245  34  3,279 
 – Others  2,524  375  2,899 
Travelling expense  68,277  8,952  77,229 
Conveyance  19,557  2,401  21,958 
Vehicle running & hiring expenses  111,434  32,641  144,075 
Communication expenses  16,018  4,836  20,854 
Auditor's Remuneration :
 – Audit Fees  2,254  552  2,806 
 – International Reporting  1,231  426  1,657 
 – Special Audit Fees  –    524  524 
 – Other Services  613  641  1,254 
 – Out of Pocket Expenses  214  163  377 
Charity and donations (other than  to political parties)  3,576  15  3,591 
Director remuneration  6,645  3,225  9,870 
Tender expenses  13,446  559  14,005 
Legal & professional charges  104,089  28,585  132,674 
Engineering fees  
{Additions include ` 36,816 thousand pertaining to 
prior period (Previous Year ` Nil)}

 383,466  218,212  601,678 

Consultancy charges  157,808  22,628  180,436 
Test & Survey Expenditure  32,692  –    32,692 
Expenditure on forest land  
(Refer note no 5 (c) of Schedule 14)

 271,848  (2,310)  269,538 

Environment health and safety  6,688  11,422  18,110 
Fee & subscription  4,569  602  5,171 
Consumption of Stores, Spares and Consumables  126,949  64,565  191,514 
Hiring of equipment  234,686  19,651  254,337 
Power and  fuel (net of recoveries of ` 36,155 
thousand (previous year ` 43,467 thousand)

 22,186  (4,966)  17,220 

Installation charges  3,612  –    3,612 
Security arrangement expense  43,896  22,647  66,543 
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(` ’000)
Particulars As at

April 1, 2009
Additions During 

The Year
As at

March 31, 2010
Social welfare expenses  124,612  16,383  140,995 
Miscellaneous expenses  
(net of recoveries ` 5,747 thousand  
(Previous year ` 4,870 thousand)

 60,988  16,048  77,036 

Fringe benefit tax  16,667  –    16,667 
Interest on Term Loan  1,144,238  746,711  1,890,949 
Interest to Holding Company  205,086  356,248  561,334 
Interest on Others  1,985  3,040  5,025 
Financial / bank charges (includes commitment 
charges / upfront fee reimbursed to holding Company 
` 8,273 thousand (previous year ` 7,750 thousand)

 108,715  49,003  157,718 

Depreciation  186,209  190,681  376,890 
 3,656,673  1,876,538  5,533,211 

Less : Interest earned (Tax deducted at source  
` 504 thousand, Previous year ` 130 thousand) 
(net of provision for income tax ` 1,629 thousand 
(Previous year ` 195 thousand))

 (57,591)  (3,308)  (60,899)

Less : Scrap sale  (18,764)  (8,122)  (26,886)
 4,004,558  2,020,466  6,025,024 

Schedule 7: Inventories
(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

Stores and spares (including stocks lying with third parties  
` 65,729 thousand (previous year ` 116,181 thousands)

 177,321  220,024 

 177,321  220,024 

Schedule 8: Cash and Bank Balances
(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

Cash on hand  2,227  2,708 
Balances with scheduled banks:
 O n current  accounts  124,360  64,093 
 O n deposit accounts  370,200  200 
 O n margin money accounts  2,979  2,302 

 499,766  69,303 
Included in deposit accounts is :

Fixed deposit of ` 200 thousand  (previous year ` 200 thousand)  
pledged with the H.P. Government Sales Tax Department

Schedule 9: Other Current Assets
(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

Interest accrued on deposits 188  158 
 188  158 
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Schedule 10: Loans and Advances  
(Unsecured & considered good)

(` ’000)
 As at  

March 31, 2010 
 As at  

March 31, 2009 
Loans to employees  1,445  451 
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be 
received

 18,531  32,052 

Security deposit  3,353  3,347 
Advance income tax / tax deducted at source  (net of provision 
for tax of ` Nil thousand (previous year ` 17,719 thousand))

–    709 

23,329  36,559 

Schedule 11: Current Liabilities
(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

Sundry creditors *
(a)  Outstanding dues of Micro  & Small Enterprises  –    –   
(b)  Outstanding dues of creditors other than  Micro & Small  
     Enterprises

 822,165  768,100 

Deposits from contractors and others  83,196  125,276 
Interest accrued but not due on loan from an institution  41,857  26,643 
Interest accrued but not due on loan from holding company  559,211  199,923 
Other liabilities  17,425  60,347 

 1,523,854  1,180,289 
* refer note no. 13 in schedule 14

Schedule 12: Provisions
(` ’000)

 As at  
March 31, 2010 

 As at  
March 31, 2009 

Provision for Tax (Net of advance tax / tax deducted at source 
` 19,861 thousand, (Previous year ` Nil))

 866  –   

Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax (net of advance fringe benefit 
tax ` Nil thousand (previous year ` 15,172  thousand))

 –    1,495 

Provision for Wealth Tax  –    40 
Provision for Gratuity  1,112  1,138 
Provision for Long term compensated absences  5,108  3,805 
Provision for Continuity Linked Bonus   11,527  10,015 

  18,613  16,493 

Schedule  13: Miscellaneous Expenditure  
(to the extent not written off or adjusted) 

(` ’000)
 As at  

March 31, 2010 
 As at  

March 31, 2009 
Share issue expenses 
Balance as per last account  20,018  20,018 

 20,018  20,018
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SCHEDULE – 14: NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

1.	 Nature of Operations

	 AD Hydro Power Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’) is in the process of setting up a 192 MW 
hydro electric power generation plant. The Company is still in the construction stage and has not yet commenced 
commercial power generation during the period ended March 31, 2010.

2.	 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

	 (a)	 Basis of preparation

		  The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Notified accounting 
standards by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and the relevant provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual 
basis. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with 
those used in the previous year.

	 (b)	 Use of Estimates

		  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
managements to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations 
during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of 
current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates. 

	 (c)	 Fixed Assets

		  Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises 
the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended 
use. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of fixed assets which takes substantial period of time to get 
ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready 
to be put to use. 

		T  he carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of 
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying 
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets 
net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 
to their present value at the weighted average cost of capital.

	 (d)	E xpenditure on new projects

		  Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized and classified as “Capital work in 
Progress” and will be apportioned to fixed assets on completion of the project. Indirect expenditure incurred 
during construction period is capitalized as part of the indirect construction cost to the extent to which the 
expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto. Income earned during construction 
period is deducted from the total of the indirect expenditure.

	 (e)	 Depreciation

		  (i)	 Depreciation on Building is provided on straight–line method at the rates based on their estimated 
useful lives, which corresponds to the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.

		  (ii)	D epreciation on Project equipments (net of their expected realizable value at the completion of the 
project) has been provided as per straight line method over the period upto the expected date of 
completion of the project i.e. June 30, 2010. 

		  (iii)	 On fixed assets other than those covered under (i) & (ii) above, depreciation is provided on written 
down value method at the rates based on their estimated useful lives, which corresponds to the rates 
prescribed in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.

	 (f)	 Leases

	 	 Where the Company is the lessee

		  Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased 
item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the 
Schedule of Project and Pre-operative expenses (pending allocation) on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term.
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	 (g)	 Inventories	

		  Inventories comprising of stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is 
determined on a weighted average basis.

	 (h)	 Revenue recognition

		  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the revenue can be reliably measured.

		  Interest

		  Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate 
applicable.

		  Sale of Scrap

		  Revenue in respect of sale of scrap is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of 
the goods have passed to the buyer.

	 (i)	 Miscellaneous Expenditure to the extent not written off or adjusted

		  Preliminary/share issue expenses will be amortized / adjusted in the manner to be decided by the Board of 
Directors, starting from the year in which the Company commences its commercial operations. 

	 (j)	 Foreign currency translation

		  Foreign currency transactions

	 	 (i)	I nitial Recognition

			   Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency 
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the 
transaction.

		  (ii)	 Conversion

			   Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non–monetary items which are 
carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction.

		  (iii)	E xchange Differences

			E   xchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting of such monetary 
items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported 
in previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which they 
arise.

	 (k)	 Retirement and other employee benefits

		  (i)	 Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Superannuation Schemes are defined 
contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the Expenses / Project & Preoperative 
Expenses (pending allocation) in the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. 
There are no obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective fund/trust.

		  (ii)	 Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation 
on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. The amount paid/ payable in 
respect of present value of liability for past services is charged to the Expenses / Project & Preoperative 
Expenses (pending allocation).

		  (iii)	S hort term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term compensated 
absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected 
unit credit method at the end of each financial year.

		  (iv)	 Liability under continuity linked loyalty bonus scheme is provided for on actuarial valuation basis, which 
is done as per projected unit credit method at the end of each financial year.

		  (v)	 Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to Expenses / Project & Preoperative Expenses (pending 
allocation) and are not deferred.
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	 (l)	 Provisions

		  A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable 
estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best 
estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance 
sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

	 (m)	Income Taxes

		  Current income tax on interest income is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities 
in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and is netted from such interest income. 
Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and 
accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

		D  eferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at 
the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable 
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can 
be realised. In situations where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all 
deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that 
they can be realised against future taxable profits. 

		T  he carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The Company writes-
down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or 
virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which 
deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably 
certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

	 (n)	 Cash and Cash equivalents

		  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short–term investments with an original 
maturity of three months or less.

3.	 As the Company has not commenced commercial operations as of March 31, 2010, no Profit and Loss Account 
has been prepared, but in lieu thereof, a statement of Project and Pre–operative expenses (pending allocation) 
has been prepared as per Schedule 6 and expenses incurred upto the year ended March 31, 2010 in relation 
to the construction of the project, have been included under the said Schedule, to be allocated appropriately at 
the time of commencement of commercial operations. Necessary details as required under Part II of Schedule 
VI of the Companies Act, 1956 have been disclosed under Schedule 6 in respect of the said expenses.

4.	T he Company has signed a Quadripartite Agreement on 5th November, 2005 with Rajasthan Spinning & 
Weaving Mills Ltd (RSWM) (the holder of Implementation rights /promoter), Malana Power Company Limited 
and Government of Himachal Pradesh for transfer of the project from RSWM to the Company to give effect to 
Implementation Agreement signed between RSWM and Government of Himachal Pradesh.

(5)	 (a)	 Land includes ` 5,677 thousand paid to Deputy Commissioner, Kullu towards transfer of government’s 
agriculture land measuring 10.76 hectare, for which the execution of lease deed is pending. 

	 (b)	 Land includes ` 298,070 thousand paid for 12.51 hectares land, out of which mutation for execution of 9.75 
hectares in favour of Company has been completed. Apart from notified land, 2.76 hectares land has been 
acquired directly from the villagers and the mutation is in progress. 

	 (c)	 ` 778,180 thousand paid to Divisional Forest Officer, Kullu on account of use of forest land measuring 
264.36 hectares represents amount paid towards loss of environment value, compulsory afforestation, cost 
of tree felling and Catchment Area Treatment Plan. 

6.	 Related Party Disclosures

	 (a)	 Names of related parties:

Ultimate Holding Company : Bhilwara Energy Limited

Enterprises having significant influence 
over the Company

: SN Power Global Services Pte. Ltd.
SN Power Holding Singapore Pte. Ltd.

Holding Company : Malana Power Company Limited

Key Management Personnel : Mr. R. P. Goel, Whole Time Director

Fellow Subsidiary : Indo Canadian Consultancy Services Limited 
Green Ventures Pvt Limited



61

(b)	 Transactions with related parties
(` ’000)

Nature of Transaction Ultimate Holding 
Company

Holding Company/ 
Enterprises 

having significant 
influence over the 

Company

Key Management 
Personnel

Fellow Subsidiary

March 
2010

March 
2009

March 
2010

March 
2009

March 
2010

March 
2009

March 
2010

March 
2009

Transactions during the year

Remuneration paid to Mr. R.P. Goel 3,225 2,678

Consultancy charges to Indo Canadian 
Consultancy Services Limited

22,628 29,022

Consultancy charges to SN Power Holdings 
Singapore Pte. Ltd.

36,817 –

Consultancy charges to SN Power Global 
Services Pte. Ltd.

116,004 –

Reimbursement of expenses incurred by 
Malana Power Company Limited on behalf of 
the Company

15,264 10,061

Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf 
of Malana Power Company Limited

1,712 3,125

Reimbursement of expenses incurred by Indo 
Canadian Consultancy Services Limited on 
behalf of the Company

7,260 2,324

Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf 
of Indo Canadian Consultancy Services Limited

30 382

Share application money received from Malana 
Power Company Limited (net)

– 1,391,056

Shares Capital allotted to Malana Power 
Company Limited

628,000 763,056

Reimbursement of expenses incurred by 
Bhilwara Energy Limited on behalf of the 
Company

1,450 1,097

Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf 
of Bhilwara Energy Limited

1,055 1,119

Unsecured Loan taken from Malana Power 
Company Limited

7,615,100 3,356,741

Unsecured Loan repaid to Malana Power 
Company Limited

5,189,100 2,212,132

Interest Expense on Unsecured loan taken from 
Malana Power Company Limited

359,288 199,923

Balances outstanding as at the year end

Investments:

Share application money pending allotment – 628,000

Investment by Malana Power Company Limited 4,929,556 4,301,556

Balances Receivable:

Bhilwara Energy Limited – 626

Balances Payable:

Indo Canadian Consultancy Services Limited – 3,392

SN Power Global Services Pte. Ltd. 20,149 –

Unsecured Loan taken from Malana Power 
Company Limited

3,750,520 1,360,756

Interest accrued on Unsecured Loan from 
Malana Power Company Limited

559,211 199,923

Guarantees given by the Malana Power 
Company Limited on behalf of the Company

800,000 450,000
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7.	 Contingent Liabilities (Not provided for) 

(` ’000)

Particulars 2009–10 2008–09
Bank guarantee outstanding 2,500 2,000
Claims by contractors / suppliers against the Company not 
acknowledged as debts*

649,249 324,764

	 * The Company believes that these claims are not probable to be decided against the Company and therefore, 
no provision for the above is required.

8.	 Capital Commitments

	E stimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (Net of 
advances) ` 1,224,588 thousand (Previous Year ` 603,416 thousand)

9.	 On account of various reasons beyond the control of the Company (like significant geological problems 
experienced in tunneling work and others), the project has undergone significant cost over-runs and the total 
estimated cost of the project has gone up from ` 8,956,000 thousand to ` 20,212,820 thousand. Management 
is of the view that such increase in estimated project cost has not affected the going concern assumption of 
the Company. Further, based on financial projections (including the projected tariff), arrived at after considering 
the past experience of running similar power project and renewable source of fuel, management believes that 
profits are expected to accrue once the project commences commercial operation and hence, no adjustments 
are required to the carrying amount of fixed assets on account of impairment.

10.	 Unhedged foreign currency exposure at the balance sheet date

Particulars 2009–10 2008–09

Creditor for Engineering 
Fees

` 15,641,500 (CAD 350,000  
@ closing rate of 1CAD = ` 44.69)

` 16,712,000 (CAD 400,000  
@ closing rate of 1CAD = ` 41.78)
` 1,240,380 (EURO 18,000  
@ closing rate of 1EURO = ` 68.91)

Creditor for Supervisory 
Manpower Support

` 19,571,401 (USD 431,754  
@ closing rate of USD = ` 45.33)

Nil

11. 	Statutory Supplementary Information 

 (` ’000)
March 2010 March 2009

(a) Directors Remuneration
Salaries, wages and bonus  1,942 1,602
Allowances 1,283 1,076

 3,225 2,678
Notes:
a)  As the future liability for the gratuity and earned leaves is provided on actuarial basis for the Company as 

a whole, the amount pertaining to the Director is not ascertainable and therefore, not included.
b) P erquisites have been considered as per taxable value as per Income Tax Act, 1961
c)  In the absence of profits, remuneration to Director is paid within the limits prescribed in Schedule XIII of 

the Companies Act, 1956.

(b) Expenditure in foreign currency (net of TDS) (` ’000)
March 2010 March 2009

Engineering Fees and Consultancy charges 64,609  42,321
Legal and Professional charges  117,565  –
Travelling  254  382
Financial charges 969  –

183,397 42,703

(c) Value of Imports calculated on CIF basis (` ’000)
March 2010 March 2009

Project Equipments 101,743 122,382
101,743 122,382
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12.	 Additional information pursuant to the provisions of paragraphs 3, 4C and 4D of Part II of Schedule VI to the 
Companies Act, 1956

a) Imported and indigenous stores and spare parts consumed:
Percentage of total consumption  Value (` ’000)

Stores & Spares March 2010 March 2009 March 2010 March 2009
Imported 10.03 08.14  6,476  3,552
Indigenously obtained 89.97 91.86  58,089 40,076

100.00 100.00  64,565 43,628

13.	T he Government of India has promulgated an Act namely The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006 which came into force with effect from October 2, 2006. As per the Act, the Company is required to 
identify the Micro, Small and Medium suppliers and pay them interest on overdue beyond the specified period 
irrespective of the terms agreed with the suppliers. As per the information available with the Company and relied 
upon by the auditors, none of the creditors fall under the definition of ‘supplier’ as per the Section 2(n) of the Act. 
In view of the above, the prescribed disclosures under Section 22 of the Act are not required to be made.

14.	 Gratuity –Defined benefit plan (AS 15– Revised)

	 The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Gratuity (being administered by a Trust) is computed as 
15 days salary, for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of 6 months and is payable on 
retirement / termination / resignation. The benefit vests on the employee completing 5 years of service. The 
Gratuity plan for the Company is a defined benefit scheme where annual contributions are deposited with a 
Gratuity Trust Fund established to provide gratuity benefits. The Trust Fund has taken a Scheme of Insurance, 
whereby these contributions are transferred to the insurer. The Company makes provision of such gratuity 
asset  / liability in the books of accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation as per the Projected unit credit 
method.

	 The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Expenses / Project 
& Preoperative Expenses (pending allocation) and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance 
sheet:

	 Schedule of Project and pre–operative expenses (pending allotment)

	 Net employee benefits expense (recognised in Employee Cost):

Particulars For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2010 
(` ’000)

For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2009 
(` ’000)

Current Service Cost 1,154 1,091

Interest cost on benefit obligation 340 231
Expected return on plan assets (271) (104)
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in the period (111) (119)
Past service cost – –
Net benefit expense 1,112 1,099

Actual return on plan assets (775) (133)

	 Balance Sheet

	 Details of Provision for Gratuity:

Particulars As at
March 31, 2010

(` ’000)

As at
March 31, 2009

(` ’000)
Defined benefit obligation 5,690 4,530
Fair value of plan assets 4,578 3,393

(1,112) (1,138)
Less: Unrecognised past service cost
Plan asset / (liability) (1,112) (1,138)



64

Annual Report 2009-2010

	 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars As at
March 31, 2010

(` ’000)

As at
March 31, 2009

(` ’000)
Opening defined benefit obligation 4,530 3,298
Interest cost 340 231
Current service cost 1,154 1,091
Benefits paid (726) –
Actuarial (gains)/ losses on obligation 393 (90)
Closing defined benefit obligation 5,690 4,530

	 Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Particulars As at
March 31, 2010

(` ’000)

As at
March 31, 2009

(` ’000)
Opening fair value of plan assets 3,393 1,298
Expected return 271 104
Contributions by employer 1,138 1,962
Benefits paid (727) –
Actuarial gains / (losses) 503 29
Closing fair value of plan assets 4,578 3,393

	 The Defined benefit obligation amounting to ` 5,690 thousand is funded by assets amounting to ` 4,578 
thousand and the Company expects to contribute ` 1,112 thousand during the 2010-11. 

	T he major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Particulars As at
March 31, 2010

As at
March 31, 2009

% %
Investments with insurer 100 100

	T he overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, 
applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled. 

	T he principal assumptions used in determining gratuity liability for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Particulars For the  
year ended on 

March 31, 2010

For the  
year ended on 

March 31, 2009
% %

Discount Rate 7.50 7.00
Expected rate of return on assets 8.00 8.00
Future Salary Increase 5.00 5.50
Withdrawal rate 1 to 3 1 to 3

	 The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

	 Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows*:

Particulars For the  
year ended on 

March 31, 2010

For the  
year ended on 

March 31, 2009

For the  
year ended on 

March 31, 2008
Defined benefit obligations 5,690 4,530 3,298
Plan assets 4,578 3,393 1,298
Surplus / (deficit) (1,112) (1,138) (2000)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (410) 112 –
Experience adjustments on plan assets 503 29 –

	 * As the Company has adopted AS –15 (revised) in the year 2007–08, the above disclosures as required under 
Para 120 (n) have been made prospectively from the date the Company has first adopted the standard.
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	 Defined Contribution Plan

(` ’000)
Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
Contribution to Provident Fund 5,840 5,768
Contribution to Superannuation Fund 1,059 1,249

6,899 7,017

15.	 Leases

	 In case of assets taken on Operating Lease:

	 Office premises, vehicles, equipments, guest houses and godowns are obtained on cancellable operating 
leases. All these leases have a lease terms varying between 3 to 5 years. There are no restrictions imposed by 
lease arrangements. There are no subleases.

(` ’000)

Particulars  For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2010

For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2009 
Lease payments for the year  37,255  86,957

16.	 In accordance with Accounting Standard 22 ‘Accounting for Taxes on Income’, issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India, in view of the fact that the Company is under the stage of setting up the hydro 
power project, deferred tax assets have not been accounted for in the books since it is not virtually certain 
whether the Company will be able to take advantage of such items.

17.	T he Company has not undertaken reconciliation during the year with one of its key contractors / suppliers 
having payables aggregating to ` 8,780 thousand, advances recoverable of ` 45,375 thousand and inventory 
lying with him of ` 84,163 thousand as at March 31, 2010. Subsequent to the year end, the management is in 
the process of seeking confirmation from this contractor / supplier for the balances outstanding. In the opinion 
of the management, such advances / inventory are fully recoverable and consequential adjustments required 
on reconciliation of the balances payable to / receivable from this contractor / supplier will not be material in 
relation to the financial statements of the Company and the same will be adjusted in the financial statements as 
and when the reconciliation is completed. 

18.	 Segment Information

	T he Company’s activities during the year involved setting up of the Hydro power project (Refer Note 1). 
Considering the nature of Company’s business and operations, there are no separate reportable segments 
(business and/ or geographical) in a ccordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 17 ‘Segment 
Reporting’ issued by the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 and hence, there are no additional 
disclosures to be provided other than those already provided in the financial statements.

19.	 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped where necessary to confirm to this year’s classification.

As per our report of even date
For S. R. Batliboi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 301003E

per Raj Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 82028

Place	 :	Gurgaon 
Dated	 :	June 2, 2010

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

RAVI JHUNJHUNWALA 
Director

Rohini Roshanara Sood 
Director

Sandeep Chandna 
Company Secretary

Place : Noida
Date : June 2, 2010
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Cash Flow Statement as at March 31, 2010

(` ’000)

As at  
March 31, 2010

As at  
March 31, 2009

A. Cash flows from / (used in) investing activities
 Acquisition of fixed assets  (2,795,607)  (3,464,426)

 Fixed deposit redeemed  2,302  10,993 

 Fixed deposit (placed)  (2,979)  – 

 Interest received  3,278  9,050 

Net cash (used in) investing activities  (2,793,006)  (3,444,383)

B. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of share capital  373,528  763,056 

Share application money received  –  628,000 

Proceeds from long term borrowings  3,629,764  2,834,609 

Interest paid  (780,500)  (749,508)

Net cash from financing activities  3,222,792  3,476,157 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B)  429,786  31,774 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  66,801  35,027 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  496,587  66,801 

Components of cash and cash equivalents 
Cash on hand  2,227  2,708 

With scheduled banks – on current accounts  124,360  64,093 

With scheduled banks – on deposit accounts  370,000  – 

 496,587  66,801 

Note:

1 Difference in the figure of cash and bank balance as per schedule 8 and as per above of Rs 3,179 thousand 
(Previous year Rs 2,502 thousand) represents long term investment in fixed deposit with an original maturity 
of more than three months.

As per our report of even date
For S. R. Batliboi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 301003E

per Raj Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 82028

Place	 :	Gurgaon 
Dated	 :	June 2, 2010

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

RAVI JHUNJHUNWALA 
Director

Rohini Roshanara Sood 
Director

Sandeep Chandna 
Company Secretary

Place : Noida
Date : June 2, 2010
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1.	 Registration Details

	R egistration No.	 2	 6	 1	 0	 8					S    tate Code	 0	 6

	 Balance Sheet Date	 3	 1		  0	 3		  2	 0		 1	 0

			D   ate	   Month	  Year

2.	 Capital Raised during the year (Amount in `  Thousands)

	P ublic Issue				    –					R     ights Issue					     –			 

	 Bonus Issue				    –					P     rivate Placement		  1	 0	 0	 1	 5	 2	 8

3.	 Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in ` Thousands)

	T otal Liabilities		  1	 9	 2	 7	 4	 5	 1	 5	T otal Assets		  1	 9	 2	 7	 4	 5	 1	 5

	 Sources of Funds

	P aid-up Capital		  5	 6	 0	 1	 5	 2	 8	R eserves and Surplus					     –

	S hare Application Money				    –					D     eferred Tax Liability					     –

	S ecured Loans		  8	 3	 8	 0	 0	 0	 0	U nsecured Loans		  3	 7	 5	 0	 5	 2	 0

	 Application of Funds

	 Net Fixed Assets 		  6	 0	 2	 5	 0	 2	 4	I nvestments					     – 
(Incl. P.O.P. exps)

	 Net Current Assets	 (	 8	 4	 1	 8	 6	 3	 )	 Misc. Expenditure				    2	 0	 0	 1	 8

	 Accumulated Losses					     –			 

4.	 Performance of Company (Amount in ` Thousands)

	T urnover					     –				T    otal Expenditure							       –

	 Profit/Loss before Tax					     –				    Profit/Loss after tax							       – 

	E arning Per Share (in `)					     –				D    ividend Per Share (in `)							       – 

5.	 Generic Names of Principal Products/Services of Company (as per monetary terms)

	I tem Code No. (ITC Code) 	 9	 8	 0	 1	 0	 0

	P roduct Description	 H	 y	 d	 r	 o	  	E	  l	 e	 c	 t	 r	 i	 c	  	E	  n	 e	 r	 g	 y

BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

Place	 :	Noida
Dated	 :	June 2, 2010

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

RAVI JHUNJHUNWALA 
Director

Rohini Roshanara Sood 
Director

Sandeep Chandna 
Company Secretary
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Group Salient Features

• The Group has a turnover of Rs. 4,000 crore - Export constitutes 46% (Rs. 1,840 

crore).

• One of the largest textile houses in the country with a turnover of over Rs. 2,450 crore 

- Export constitutes 42% (Rs. 1,025 crore).

• One of leading manufacturer and exporter of Graphite Electrodes in the country with 

turnover of Rs. 1,084 crore - Export constitutes 74% (Rs. 807 crore).

• Largest producer and exporter of Synthetic Blended Yarn and largest range in Greige, 

Dyed and Mélange Yarn with total spindleage capacity of nearly 5 Lacs.

• Manufacturer of Wool Blended and Premium Light Weight Fabrics, Worsted Fabric, 

Silk Synthetic fashion Fabric and Denim Fabric.

• India's one of the largest vertically integrated Knitwear Company.

• Manufacturer of Flame Retardants, Air – texturized Yarn and Automotive Furnishing 

Fabric.

• World's largest single site plant of Graphite Electrodes with a production capacity of 

66,000 TPA.

• The Group has 120 MW Thermal Power Plants, approx. 300 MW Hydro Power Plants & 

60 MW HFO based Captive Power Plants.

• The Group generated 1,300 Million power units in the year 2009-10.

• A consulting Company providing engineering consultancy services  for  Hydro Power 

Projects.

Group Companies
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LNJ Bhilwara Group

TEXTILES

GRAPHITE

POWER

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

OFFICES

RSWM Limited

1. Kharigram Fibre Dyeing, Spinning Dyed & Grey Yarn

2. Mayur Nagar, Banswara Spinning PV Blended, Cotton & Open End Grey Yarn

3. Mandpam Melange, Cotton Dyed Yarn & Yarn Dyeing

4. Rishabhdev Spinning PV Blended Grey Yarn

5. Ringas Fibre Dyeing & Spinning Dyed Yarn

6. LNJ Nagar, Mordi Weaving & PV Fabric Processing & Finishing

7. LNJ Nagar, Mordi Cotton Ring & Open End Spinning, Denim Fabric 
Weaving & Rope Dyeing, Processing & Finishing

8. LNJ Nagar, Mordi Thermal Power

Cheslind Textiles Ltd.

9. Bagalur Spinning Cotton, Compact, Gassed & Mercerized Yarn 
& Knitting

10. Pondicherry Spinning Cotton, Compact, Gassed & Mercerized Yarn 
& Knitting

Maral Overseas Ltd.

11. Maral Sarovar Cotton Spinning, Knitting, Dyeing & Finishing, Knitted 
Garments

12. Maral Sarovar Captive Thermal Power

13. Noida Knitted Garments

14. Noida Knitted Garments

BSL Ltd.

15. Bhilwara PV & Worsted Spinning, PV & Worsted Weaving & Silk 
Fabric

16. Jaisalmer Wind Power Generation

BMD Pvt. Ltd.

17. LNJ Nagar, Mordi Automotive Furnishing Fabric, Flame Retardant 
Fabric, Furnishing Fabric

Bhilwara Technical Textiles Ltd.

18. LNJ Nagar, Mordi Technical Textiles

HEG Ltd.

19. Mandideep Graphite Electrodes

20. Mandideep Captive Thermal Power

21. Tawa Captive Hydro Electric Power

Bhilwara Energy Ltd.

22. Pathankot UBDC Stage III Hydro Electric Power Generation

Malana Power Company Ltd.

23. Malana (Kullu) Hydro Electric Power Generation

AD Hydro Power Ltd.

24. Allain-Duhangan Hydro Electric Power Generation
(Manali)

NJC Hydro Power Ltd.

25. Tawang Nyam Jang Chhu Hydro Electric Power Generation

Indo Canadian Consultancy Services Ltd.

26. Noida Power Engineering Services

Bhilwara Scribe Pvt. Ltd.

27. Bhopal Medical Transcription Services

28. Bengaluru Medical Transcription Services

Bhilwara Infotech Ltd.

29. Bengaluru IT Services

Corporate Office

30. Noida (NCR-Delhi)

Regional / Marketing

31. Mumbai 35. Ludhiana

32. Kolkata 36. Amritsar

33. Bengaluru 37. Bhilwara

34. New Delhi

25
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Malana Power Company Limited
Bhilwara Towers, A-12, Sector-I,Noida - 201301 (NCR - Delhi), India

Website : www.malanapower.com / www.lnjbhilwara.com

Malana Power Company Limited




